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WEST
HARTFORD

February 6, 2023

Mayor, Town Council, Town Manager, Citizens and Taxpayers of the Town of West Hartford:

State law requires that all general-purpose local governments publish, within six months of the close of
each fiscal year, a complete set of financial statements presented in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP) for governmental units and audited in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, by a firm of licensed certified public accountants.
Pursuant to that requirement, | am pleased to transmit to you the Annual Comprehensive Financial
Report (ACFR) of the Town of West Hartford (Town) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.

This report consists of management’s representation concerning the Town’s finances. Management
assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the information contained in this
report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal control that it has established for this
purpose. Because the cost of internal control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to
provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free of any
material misstatements.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants, has issued an unmodified
opinion on the Town of West Hartford’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
The independent auditors’ report is presented as the first component in the financial section of this
report.

The Town'’s fiscal year 2022 audit includes an audit of all federal grants in accordance with the Single
Audit Act of 1984, as amended in 1996, which provides that state and local governments expending
more than $500,000 in federal financial assistance must have a single audit for the fiscal year. The
single audit consists of a financial audit, test of internal controls, and compliance audit. The single audit
is in lieu of any financial and compliance audits required by any federal agency. The auditors’ reports
related to tests of internal controls and compliance testing have been furnished separately to the Town.
In addition, the audit also includes an audit of all state financial assistance in compliance with the State
Single Audit Act pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes (CGS) sections 4-230 to 4-236, inclusive
(Chapter 55b). Each municipality expending more than $100,000 in state financial assistance must
have a state single audit. An audit conducted in accordance with sections 4-230 through 4-236 of the
CGS shall be in lieu of any financial compliance audit of an individual state assistance program. These
reports are available in the Town’s separately issued single audit reports.

Management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditors’ report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. This
letter of transmittal is designed to complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it.



PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT

The Town of West Hartford is an independent full-service town with sole local government taxing power
within its boundaries. The Town is autonomous from any county, municipality, or other political
subdivision of the State of Connecticut. In 1919, the Town became the first in the State to appoint a
Town Manager and presently operates with a Council-Manager form of government. The legislative
function is performed by the Town Council, which is comprised of nine members who are elected
biennially. The Town Council formulates policies for the administration of the Town. The Town Manager
is appointed by the Town Council to serve as the Town's Chief Executive Officer, with appointive and
removal authority over department directors and other employees of the Town. The Town Manager is
responsible for the implementation of policies established by the Town Council. An elected seven-
member Board of Education appoints a Superintendent of Schools, who administers the education
system of the Town.

The Town is located in central Connecticut adjacent to and west of the City of Hartford, the state
capital. It is a residential suburb in the Hartford metropolitan area. The towns of Bloomfield, Newington,
Farmington, and Avon also border the Town. West Hartford is approximately 100 miles southwest of
Boston and approximately 100 miles northeast of New York City. The Town encompasses 22.2 square
miles and has a population of 64,083.

The Town provides a comprehensive range of municipal services including police, fire, paramedic,
public works, education, community development, recreation, library, transportation, human services,
and cultural and historic activities.

The MD&A and the basic financial statements included in this report pertain to those functions
administered by the Town Manager and Superintendent of Schools and are under the jurisdiction of the
Town Council. These functions encompass all activities considered to be part of (controlled by or
dependent on) the financial reporting entity. Control by or dependence on the Town is determined on
the basis of budget adoption, taxing authority, or outstanding debt secured by revenues or general
obligations of the Town. Further information concerning the financial condition of the Town is contained
in the MD&A.

In accordance with these criteria, the financial statements include the financial activities of the Town of
West Hartford, the Town of West Hartford Board of Education, the Town of West Hartford Library Board
and the West Hartford Center Special Services District, a discretely presented component unit. The
Town of West Hartford Housing Authority and The West Hartford-Bloomfield Health District, although
containing the name of the Town, are excluded from the Town's financial statements. Although the
Town Council appoints members to the Board of Directors for the West Hartford Housing Authority and
the West Hartford-Bloomfield Health District, the Town has no involvement in their day-to-day
operations or in the determination of their operating budget. Furthermore, the Town has no obligation
for debt issued by the Housing Authority or the Health District and does not fund their operating deficits.

The Metropolitan District Commission (MDC) provides water and sewer services to West Hartford and
certain other municipalities. The MDC finances water service via user fees and sewer services via tax
levy on the participating municipalities. Since this is a separate governmental unit, its audited annual
financial statements are not included in this report, but are available from the MDC directly.
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In March 1981, the Town Council adopted a comprehensive budgeting and accounting ordinance. The
ordinance sets forth the standards and practices that apply to the Town's financial management.
Included in the ordinance is a provision requiring the appropriation of all funds not otherwise provided
by specific law, to be expended outside of budgetary operations. Annually, the Town Council adopts a
balanced operating budget, a capital improvement budget, and a twelve-year capital improvement
program (CIP). The budget calendar is outlined in Note 2 of the notes to the basic financial statements.
Budget development and administration is performed by the Department of Financial Services.

The budget is legally enacted at the character of expenditure level within the department. Budgetary
control is achieved through the use of a full encumbrance system, which encumbers appropriations
upon the issuance of purchase orders. Commitments which could result in an over-expenditure of an
appropriation at the character level are not issued until transfers or additional appropriations are made
available. Encumbrances outstanding at year-end are recorded as budgetary expenditures and
reported as assigned fund balance.

The budget is integrated into the accounting system and amended budgetary data (as presented in the
financial statements for all funds with annual budgets) is compared to actual expenditures. Accordingly,
budget to actual comparisons are provided in the report for each governmental fund for which an
appropriated annual budget has been adopted. For the General Fund, this comparison is presented as
part of the required supplementary information. For governmental funds with appropriated annual
budgets, this comparison is presented in Exhibits B-3 to B-12.

FACTORS AFFECTING FINANCIAL CONDITION

Economic condition and outlook — The Town of West Hartford continues to see significant
investment Town-wide, arguably some of the largest scale and impact projects in decades. While
West Hartford Center remains the dining, shopping and entertainment center of the region, all
commercial areas are seeing reinvestment and attracting new small businesses, commercial and
residential development. The commercial districts, along with strong schools, parks and an extensive
array of services, help make West Hartford the community of choice in the region. West Hartford is
consistently rated as a great place to live and work and has received recent recognition by national
publications such as The New York Times, TIME/Money, Family Circle Magazine, Travel & Leisure
Magazine, Livability.com and Kiplinger’s Personal Finance.

The Town has also appropriated funds received from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) to
support economic stability and growth. In an effort to assist small businesses and non-profit
organizations, the Town Council approved the use of $2,000,000 of ARPA funds to assist these
businesses/organizations through the post COVID recovery period. This program began in August of
2022 and to date 167 applications have been received for individual recovery grants up to $10,000. In
addition, the Town Council recently approved $6,000,000 of ARPA funds to provide financial
assistance for eligible housing development or rehabilitation projects related to the creation of
affordable housing in Town. Also in line with economic stability and growth, the Town Administration is
in the planning stages of creating a facade improvement program which will be presented to the Town
Council in early 2023.



As depicted in the chart below, the fiscal year 2022 unemployment rates in West Hartford remained
well below regional and state levels during the pandemic.
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The annual number of single family home sales in West Hartford has remained stable during the
economic downturn, as a result of COVID-19. Conveyance tax and land record fee revenues have
remained strong. The number of sales has been trending upward since 2011, with the exception of a
slight dip in calendar year 2014. As illustrated, homes in West Hartford maintained their value during
this period, with median sales price relatively consistent over the timeframe presented. Buyers continue
to be attracted to the excellent school system and vibrant community. Stable housing prices have
insulated the community from the impact of a significant decline in value, resulting in limited foreclosure

activity.
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The Town again achieved a property tax collection rate of 99.3% for fiscal year 2022. Stable home
prices, relatively low unemployment rates and lack of foreclosure activity contributed to strong property
tax collections.
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Cash management policies and practices - All funds not required to have separate bank accounts
use a single consolidated account for deposits. The collected balance of the consolidated account not
needed to liquidate current obligations is invested on a daily basis to meet future cash flow needs under
the authority of the Town’s General Investment Policy. The General Investment Policy, adopted
pursuant to the authority of section 7-400 of the CGS and Chapter VI, Section 2 of the West Hartford
Code, provides a policy for the investment of all Town funds except for reserves of the Risk
Management Fund and the Pension and Other Post-Employment Benefits Trust Funds. As of June 30,
2022, this pool of funds is invested in various money market accounts and the State of Connecticut's
Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). STIF is a Standard & Poor's AAA rated investment pool of high
quality, short-term money market instruments managed by the Cash Management Division of the
Connecticut Office of the State Treasurer. The Town monitors the financial strength and stability of the
institutions in which it holds money market accounts via national rating services.

The reserve funds of the Risk Management Fund are invested under the authority of the Town’s
Statement of Investment Policy for the Risk Reserve Accounts pursuant to the authority of section 7-
403 of the CGS. The reserve pool consists of fifty percent of the liability reserve and one hundred
percent of the prior year ending balance of the pre-funding reserve. The intent is to invest these funds
in a manner which matches the duration of the investments with the cash flow needs inherent with long-
term liabilities of this nature. Statutes governing the reserve pool provide for a wide variety of both fixed
income and equity investment options. There can be no less than fifty percent of the pool invested in
the following: United States government and agency obligations, United States Postal Service
obligations, certificates of deposit, commercial paper, savings accounts, and bank acceptances. In
addition, up to fifty percent of the total amount invested can be invested in equity securities.

(viii)



The Town Council appointed Pension Board, governed by the Statement of Pension Plan Investment
Policy, administers the funds of the employee retirement system separately. An independent custodial
bank holds all of the Town’s reserve pool investments.

Long-term financial planning - The Town has minimized property tax increases while maintaining
long-term financial health through proactive financial management strategies and a moderated effect
from the economic downturn. High quality educational and municipal services, which attract and retain
residents and exemplify the character of the community, have been preserved. Policy decisions are
made with a long-term financial perspective that balances the services expected by the community with
residents’ ability to pay. This perspective has enabled the Town to maintain its actuarially determined
contributions for retirement benefits, strengthen levels of reserves, and avoid one-time budget
strategies.

West Hartford will continue to encounter fiscal challenges in the coming years. The possibility of State
and federal budget constraints will contribute to uncertainty of intergovernmental revenues. Retiree
health and pension benefits continue to increase despite successful efforts at restructuring these
benefits through collective bargaining agreements. The pressure of spending increases will continue to
outpace growth in the value of taxable property and it will be an on-going challenge to provide a
consistent level of municipal and education services while minimizing tax increases. However, it is a
challenge that West Hartford is prepared to address.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town for its ACFR for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021.
Town has achieved this prestigious award for thirty-five consecutive years. In order to be awarded a
Certificate of Achievement, the government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized
ACFR that satisfies both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year. The Town believes the current ACFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and it will be submitted to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, the Town has maintained an Aaa/AAA credit rating with Moody’s Investor Services and
Standard and Poor’s Ratings Services, respectively, since 1972, with the rating reaffirmed in February
2022.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the effective and dedicated
services of the staff of the Department of Financial Services. The preparation of the ACFR requires a
major effort from the accounting staff and each member of the department who assisted and
contributed to the preparation of this report has my sincere appreciation.

| would also like to thank the Mayor, Town Council and Town Manager for their continued interest and
support in planning and executing the financial operations of the Town.

Respectfully submitted,

Peter Privitera
Director of Financial Services
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\ A CLAconnect.com
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Town Council
Town of West Hartford, Connecticut

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining
fund information of the Town of West Hartford, Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30,

2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of West
Hartford, Connecticut’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town
of West Hartford, Connecticut, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position,
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the Town of West Hartford,
Connecticut and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical
requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of West Hartford,
Connecticut’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement
date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

CLAglobal.com/disclaimer
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Town Council
Town of West Hartford, Connecticut

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:
e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of Town of West Hartford, Connecticut’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about Town of West Hartford, Connecticut’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

(12)



Town Council
Town of West Hartford, Connecticut

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management
discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the pension and OPEB schedules
be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or
provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of West Hartford, Connecticut’s basic financial statements. The report of
property tax collections, combining nonmajor funds financial statements, nonmajor schedules of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance, combining internal service funds financial
statements, and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are presented for purposes of additional
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the report of
property tax collections, combining nonmajor funds financial statements, nonmajor schedules of
revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance, combining internal service funds financial
statements, and combining fiduciary funds financial statements are fairly stated, in all material respects,
in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.
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Town Council
Town of West Hartford, Connecticut

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
February 6, 2023, on our consideration of the Town of West Hartford, Connecticut’s internal control
over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of West Hartford, Connecticut’s
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Town of West Hartford,
Connecticut’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wm% s 2
CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

West Hartford, Connecticut
February 6, 2023

(14)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2022

This discussion and analysis of the financial performance of the Town of West Hartford (the Town) is
prepared by management to provide a narrative overview and analysis of the Town’s financial activities
for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. We encourage readers to consider the information presented
here in conjunction with the additional information furnished in our transmittal letter, which can be found
on pages iv-ix of this report, and the Town’s financial statements, Exhibits | to IX. All amounts, unless
otherwise stated, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e At the close of fiscal year 2022, liabilities and deferred inflows of the Town exceeded its assets
and deferred outflows by $208,853 on a government wide basis, an increase in the deficit of
$38,376 as compared to the prior year.

e The governmental activities funds reported consolidated net position of ($209,492), an increase
in the deficit of $41,006 from fiscal year 2021.

e The business-type activities of the Town had net position of $639, at fiscal year-end, an
increase of $2,630 from the prior year.

e The Town’s net investment in capital assets increased slightly ($9,366) in the current year.

e Unassigned fund balance of the General Fund increased $1,922 from fiscal year 2021 to
$28,753 or 9.2% of total expenditures.

e The Town closed on $324M in Pension Obligation Bonds to fully fund its pension liability and
created a Pension Reserve Fund. At year end, the fund’s committed fund balance is $26,497.

e The Town once again achieved a current year property tax collection rate of 99.3%.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Town’s basic financial
statements. The basic financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-wide
financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report
also contains other supplementary information.

Government-Wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to
provide the reader with a broad overview of the Town’s financial position in a manner similar to the
private-sector.

The statement of net position (Exhibit |) presents information on all the Town’s assets and deferred
outflows and liabilities and deferred inflows, with the difference between the two reported as net
position and is one way to measure the Town’s financial health. Over time, increases or decreases in
net position may serve as a useful indicator as to whether the Town’s financial position has improved or
deteriorated.

The statement of activities (Exhibit Il) presents changes to the Town’s net position during the fiscal year
presented. Changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are
reported in the statement for some items, such as uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation
leave, which will only result in cash flows of future fiscal periods.
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Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are primarily
supported by property taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or most of their costs through user charges and fees
(business-type activities). Both are discussed below:

e Governmental Activities - Most of the Town’s basic services, which include general government,
public safety, community maintenance, human and cultural, and education, are recorded here.
Property taxes, charges for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these
activities.

e Business-Type Activities - The Town charges user fees to customers to help cover all or a
significant portion of the costs of these services.

The government-wide financial statements include not only the Town itself, but also a discretely
presented component unit known as the West Hartford Center Special Services District which was
established in 2004. Financial information for the discretely presented component unit is reported
separately from the financial information of the primary government. The government-wide financial
statements can be found on pages 31-32 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements. A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over
resources segregated for a specific objective or activity. Some funds are required to be established by
Town Charter. The Town Council establishes many other funds to help control and manage financial
activities for particular purposes (such as the Capital Projects Fund and the Police Private Duty
Services Fund) or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using grants and other money
(such as grants received from the State Department of Education and the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development). The Town’s funds are divided into three categories: governmental,
proprietary and fiduciary.

Governmental Funds (Exhibits Ill and IV). The governmental fund statements provide a detailed
short-term view of the Town’s general government operations and the basic services it provides. These
financial statements focus on the near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as on
balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be
useful in evaluating a government’s short-term financing requirements. These funds are reported using
the modified accrual accounting method, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can
readily be converted to cash.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. The
relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the statement of net position
and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in the reconciliation at the bottom
of the fund financial statements. By reading both of these, readers may better understand the long-
term impact of the government’s short-term financing decisions.
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The Town maintains twenty-seven (28) individual governmental funds. Information is presented
separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statements of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General Fund, Capital Projects Funds
(comprised of the Capital Projects Fund and the Capital Nonrecurring Expenditure Fund), American
Rescue Plan Act Fund, and the Debt Service Funds (comprised of the Debt Service Fund and the Blue
Back Square Fund), all of which are considered major funds. The remaining twenty-two (22) funds are
combined into a single aggregated presentation. Individual fund data for each of the nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the combining statements located on pages 118-123 of this report.

The Town adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison
statement, showing original budget, final budget and actual results has been provided to demonstrate
compliance with this budget and is located in the required supplementary information on pages 99-111
of this report.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 33-36.

Proprietary Funds (Exhibits V, VI and VIl). The Town maintains two types of proprietary funds.
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the
government-wide financial statements. The Town’s only enterprise fund is the Leisure Services Fund.
Internal service funds are used to accumulate and allocate internal costs among various departments.
The Town uses internal service funds to account for risk management costs and utility costs. Because
both of these functions predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, these
activities have been included within governmental activities in the government-wide financial
statements. Proprietary funds are reported using the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues
are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred.

Fiduciary Funds (Exhibits VIl and IX). The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees’
pension plan and other postemployment benefits trust plan. It is also responsible for other assets that,
because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the trust beneficiaries. All of the Town’s fiduciary
activities are reported in separate statements of fiduciary net position and changes in fiduciary net
position. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements as the
resources for those funds are not available to support the Town’s operations. The Town is responsible
for ensuring that the assets reported in the fund are used for their intended purposes. The accounting
method used for fiduciary funds is similar to that used for proprietary funds.

Notes to the Financial Statements. The notes provide additional information necessary to fully
understand the information provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes
to the financial statements can be found on pages 42-97.

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful tool to analyze a government’s financial
position. The Town’s combined net position decreased from ($170,477) at the end of fiscal year 2021 to
($208,853) at the end of fiscal year 2022. The discussion below focuses on the net position (Table 1)
and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Town’s governmental and business-type activities.
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The largest component of the Town’s net position is its $256,312 investment in capital assets. This
represents capital assets (such as land, buildings, infrastructure, vehicles, machinery and equipment)
net of accumulated depreciation, less any related debt outstanding to acquire such assets. These
assets are used to provide services to citizens and thus are not available to finance future spending.
Although the Town’s investment in capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that
resources necessary to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, as capital assets cannot
be used to satisfy these liabilities.

An additional $3,006 of the Town’s net position represents resources subject to use restrictions by
external sources. The remaining balance is a deficit of $468,171 and is comprised of the Town’s net
pension liability of $119,370 and OPEB liability of $230,884 offset by unrestricted funds which may be
used to finance day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation or other legal requirements.

TABLE 1
Net Position
In Thousands

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Assets:
Current and Other Assets $ 168,792 $ 130479 §$ 239 $ 11 $ 169,031 $ 130,490
Capital Assets, Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 393,310 384,078 8,579 8,797 401,889 392,875
Total Assets 562,102 514,557 8,818 8,808 570,920 523,365
Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Charge on Refunding 826 1,031 - - 826 1,031
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 108,306 24,807 1,660 380 109,966 25,187
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 39,825 31,549 578 458 40,403 32,007
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 148,957 57,387 2,238 838 151,195 58,225
Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities 847,121 653,760 5,550 7,226 852,671 660,986
Other Liabilities 48,601 37,094 4,594 3,823 53,195 40,917
Total Liabilities 895,722 690,854 10,144 11,049 905,866 701,903
Deferred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Charge on Refunding 236 259 - - 236 259
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions - 35,295 - 541 - 35,836
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB 3,963 3,258 58 47 4,021 3,305
Deferred Inflows Related to Leases 5,731 215 5,946
Advance Property Tax Collections 14,899 10,764 - - 14,899 10,764
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 24,829 49,576 273 588 25,102 50,164
Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets 248,059 238,149 8,253 8,797 256,312 246,946
Restricted 3,006 7,506 - - 3,006 7,506
Unrestricted (Deficit) (460,557) (414,141) (7,614) (10,788) (468,171) (424,929)
Total Net Position $ (209,492) $ (168,486) $ 639 $ (1,991) $ (208,853) $ (170,477)
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2022

Governmental Activities. The net position of the Town’s governmental activities decreased $41,006
from the prior year. Investment in capital assets, net of related debt, increased $9,366 due to continued
investment in the Town’s buildings and infrastructure. Net position classified as unrestricted decreased
$46,268, primarily due to the change in long term liabilities related to pensions and OPEB.

Total assets increased $47,555 from the prior year primarily due to the receipt of American Rescue
Plan Act funds as well as increased cash and investment balances on-hand in other governmental
funds as of June 30, 2022. Total deferred outflows of resources increased $92,970.

Business-Type Activities. The total net position of the Town’s business-type activities increased $2,630
in fiscal year 2022. Investment in capital assets was reduced by $544, as depreciation expense exceeded
additions to capital assets in fiscal year 2022, and the deficit in unrestricted net position decreased
$3,174.

TABLE 2
Changes in Net Position
In Thousands

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Revenues:
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services $ 15087 $ 13977 $ 4108 $ 298 $ 19,195 $ 16,945
Operating Grants and
Contributions 69,433 93,506 - - 69,433 93,506
Capital Grants and
Contributions 4,435 1,906 273 24 4,708 1,930
General Revenues:
Property Taxes 272,427 267,257 - - 272,427 267,257
Grants and Contributions Not
Restricted to Specific Purposes 2,919 2,969 - - 2,919 2,969
Unrestricted Investment
Earnings (2,895) 5,161 - - (2,895) 5,161
Other General Revenues 4,821 4,225 - - 4,821 4,225
Total Revenues 366,227 389,001 4,381 2,992 370,608 391,993
Program Expenses:
General Government 31,196 16,682 - - 31,196 16,682
Public Safety 72,168 69,259 - - 72,168 69,259
Community Maintenance 41,807 45,154 - - 41,807 45,154
Human and Cultural 16,419 15,037 - - 16,419 15,037
Education 236,665 255,252 - - 236,665 255,252
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9,175 1,618 - - 9,175 1,618
Leisure Services - - 1,554 4,730 1,554 4,730
Total Program Expenses 407,430 403,002 1,554 4,730 408,984 407,732
Change in Net Position
Before Transfers (41,203) (14,001) 2,827 (1,738) (38,376) (15,739)
Transfers 197 (70) (197) 70 - -
Change in Net Position (41,006) (14,071) 2,630 (1,668) (38,376) (15,739)
Net Position - Beginning of Year (168,486) (154,415) (1,991) (323) (170,477) (154,738)
Net Position - End of Year $ (209,492) $ (168,486) $ 639 $ (1,991) $ (208,853) $ (170,477)
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Primary Government

Total primary government revenues decreased $21,385 or 5.5% from the prior year. Total primary
government program expenses increased $1,252 or .3% over the same time period. The following
analysis separately considers the operations of governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental Activities

Revenues from governmental activities exclusive of transfers totaled $366,227 for fiscal year 2022, a
decrease of $22,774 over the prior year. Property taxes (74.3%) and operating grants and contributions
(19.0%) were the primary revenue sources, while charges for services, capital grants and contributions,
unrestricted grants, investment earnings and other general revenues combined (6.7%) comprised the
balance of the Town’s revenues.

2022 REVENUES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BY SOURCE

Grants and
Unrestricted Contributions Not
Capital Grants and Investment Earnings _ Restricted to Specific
Contributions -.8% ' Purposes
1.3% T \ / 8% Other General
T \/ = Revenues
Charges for Services e A o e 1.3%

4.1%

Operating Grants and __
Contributions
19.0%

" _ Property Taxes
i 74 3%

Operating grants and contributions totaled $69,433 in fiscal year 2022, a decrease of $24,073 from the
prior year. Capital grants and contributions increased $2,529 from the prior year as funds received from
Federal and State reimbursements for the major construction such as the Park Road Interchange
project in addition to street reconstruction and trail projects continuing. On a government-wide basis,
unrestricted investment earnings include both short-term investments in the governmental funds as well
as investment income from the risk management reserve and pension reserve accounts. There was an
unrestricted investment earnings variance of $1,330 in fiscal year 2022 as compared to the prior year
due to market declines. Property tax revenue remained strong in fiscal year 2022, again achieving a
collection rate of 99.3% of the levy.
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Program expenses for primary government totaled $408,984 for fiscal year 2022. Approximately 22%
of program expenses were supported by program revenues with the balance funded from general
revenues, primarily property taxes. Expenses for education (62.1%), public safety (4.9%), and
community maintenance (19.6%) comprise 86.6% of total governmental activities program expenses,
with general government, human and cultural, and interest on long-term debt comprising the balance
(13.4%).

2022 EXPENSES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BY FUNCTION

General
Interest on long-_ Government
term debt 10.8%
2.3% \ ___ Public Safety
. ' 4.9%
Education Cqmmunity
62.1% _Maintenance
19.6%

_Human and cultural
4%

Table 3 presents the total cost and net cost of services (total cost less revenues from nontax sources
directly related to the individual function) for each of the Town’s six major functions: education, public
safety, community maintenance, human and cultural, general government, and interest on long-term
debt. The net cost shows the financial burden placed on the Town’s taxpayers by function.

TABLE 3
Cost of Governmental Activities by Function
In Thousands

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services
2022 2021 2022 2021
Education $ 236,665 $ 255,252 $ 172,309 $ 161,117
Public Safety 72,168 69,259 67,950 65,037
Community Maintenance 41,807 45,154 31,705 39,081
Human and Cultural 16,419 15,037 13,579 12,779
General Government 31,196 16,682 23,757 13,981
Interest on Long-Term Debt 9,175 1,618 9,175 1,618

Total $ 407,430 $ 403,002 $ 318,475 $ 293,613
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2022 NET COST OF SERVICES - GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES BY

FUNCTION
Interest on long-term __ __General Government
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Business-Type Activities

Revenues from business-type activities increased $1,389 from the prior year, as programs began to
return to pre-pandemic levels. Program expenses decreased $3,176 over the prior year. The change
in net assets for fiscal year 2022 increased $2,630 from the prior year.

FUND FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to control and manage financial activities for a
particular purpose or to demonstrate compliance with legal requirements.

Governmental Funds

As of June 30, 2022, the Town’s governmental funds (as presented in the Balance Sheet - Exhibit IIl)
reported a combined fund balance of $70,274. This represents an increase of $28,916 or 69.9%
compared fund balance of the prior year. Based upon fund balance classification under GASB 54,
$28,753 or 40.9% is unassigned and is comprised of fund balance of the General Fund. An additional
$39,007 or 55.5% is committed for a specific purpose by the Town Council. The majority of which
($26,497) is in the Pension Bond Reserve Fund created newly created by the Town Council after the
sale of pension obligation bonds to fully fund the Town’s pension liability, with the intent of committing
that fund to mitigate potential increases in the required annual actuarially determined contribution to the
Pension Fund in the event of significantly adverse market performance of the pension assets. While
currently committed for pension contribution purposes, the Town Council has the authority to amend
the ordinance that created this fund to expand its use, if necessary, to address any possible
catastrophic events. Committed fund balance in the Debt Service, Capital Projects and Non Major
Funds are $4,324, $947, $7,242, respectively. The remainder are: nonspendable ($190), restricted
($1,977), and assigned ($347) fund balance, as defined in note 1 to the financial statements.
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For fiscal year 2022, the total net change in fund balances for governmental funds (Exhibit IV) was an
increase of $28,916. Factors affecting the General Fund are discussed below in the General Fund
Highlights section. Fund balance of the Capital Project Funds increased $1,594, reflecting
intergovernmental revenue of $4,388 for school and infrastructure projects, transfers in of $3,778,
charges for services of $257 and miscellaneous revenues from sale of assets and reimbursements of
$34. Capital expenditures totaled $20,749, and transfers out were $1,331. The Debt Services had a
planned use of fund balance in fiscal year 2022 to mitigate the financial impact General Fund transfers
for debt service and is reflected in the decrease in fund balance of $ .5. Nonmajor Governmental Funds
experienced a net increase in fund balance of $1,584, as detailed by fund in Exhibit B-2. Significant
changes in fund balance are explained below.

The Parking Lot Fund’s deficit increased $392. Reduced on street parking to accommodate outdoor
dining as well as a reduction in monthly parking permits with many professional employees continuing
to work from home, is contributing to the deficit. Westmoor Park Fund saw an increase in fund balance
of $48 primarily the result of favorable trust investment income. The Cafeteria Fund’s increase in fund
balance of $2,134 is due to a significant increase in the student meal count. All meals were served free
of charge to students under a federal grant which reimbursed the district for each meal served, at a
higher reimbursement rate than the standard National School Lunch program. This combination of
higher per meal revenue and higher volume of meals resulted in a positive change in fund balance. The
School Special Programs Fund had a planned use of fund balance to offset the cost of special
education services provided to out of district students as seen in the decrease in fund balance of
$197.The School Interscholastic Fund saw a deficit of $95 as a result of slightly lower student
participation due to the pandemic as well as the purchase of equipment purchases to meet the needs of
the sports programs. The Cemetery Operating Fund saw a loss of $106 due to an ongoing worker’s
compensation claim and declining plot sales. The Town the Cares fund balance increased $48, as
contributions continue in due to the pandemic. The remaining nonmajor governmental funds
experienced changes totaling a net decrease of $144.

Proprietary Funds

The Town’s proprietary fund statements (Exhibits V-VII) provide the same type of information found in
the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail. Total net position of proprietary funds
was $19,926 at year-end, a decrease of $2,031 from the prior year. Net position of the Internal Service
Funds had a decrease of $4,661 primarily from unfavorable investment performance and increased
claims expense in the Risk Management Fund. As mentioned previously, the Leisure Services Fund
experienced as increase in net position of $2,631.

General Fund Highlights
Over the course of the year, the Town Council approved budget revisions for factors not known during

the budget process. Tables 4 and 5 highlight the changes from the original adopted budget to the final
amended budget for fiscal year 2022 and the variance between the final budget and actual results.
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TABLE 4
Summary of General Fund Budget
Original and Final Estimated Revenues vs. Actual
In Thousands

Over
Budget Actual (Under)
Original Final Change Revenue Final Budget
Revenue:
Property Taxes $ 271,251 $ 273,051 $ 1,800 $ 272,803 $ (248)
Federal 4,220 4,601 381 5,014 413
State 25,667 25,768 101 26,053 285
Charges for Services 5,525 6,644 1,119 7,125 481
Local Revenues 825 825 - 881 56
Income on Investments 430 430 - 209 (221)
Transfers In 526 526 - 508 (18)
Total $ 308,444 $ 311,845 $ 3,401 $ 312,593 $ 748

General Fund Budgetary Amendments

The General Fund’s final estimated revenues increased $3,511 or 1.1% from the original adopted
budget.

e Estimated revenues from property taxes increased $1,800 and charges for services increased
$1,119 to fund year-end contributions to the Capital Nonrecurring Expenditure (CNRE) Fund
($1,600), estimated tax appeals ($400) and transfer to the Utility Services Fund and Risk
Management Fund to mitigate rising utility ($400) and health costs ($500).

e Additional federal grants totaling $381 were appropriated during the fiscal year for Federal
FEMA grant for Fire and Police distracted/DUI driving grants.

e Estimated intergovernmental revenue from the State of Connecticut increased $101 for a Fire
NSEP decontamination container grant. In addition, the Town Clerk received a grant for the
preservation of historical documents.

General Fund Revenue Variance
When compared to final estimated revenues, total revenue was higher than budgeted by $748. Current
year property tax collection remains strong, with the Town achieving a collection rate of 99.3% as

compared to the current year tax levy. There were a number of larger commercial tax appeals that
settled during the fiscal year as reflected in prior year collections.
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Federal revenue was higher than the final budget by $413 and was primarily due FEMA fire rescue
grant as well as a number of E911grants received. State revenue was greater than the final budget by
$285 primarily due to an increase in the Education Cost Sharing Grant as well as miscellaneous State
grants. Charges for services were $481 greater than the final budget, the majority of which was from
favorable variances in conveyance tax and fees associated with land records ($196) as well as various
permit revenue ($185) as the housing market remains favorable. Miscellaneous charges rose $56 over
the prior year. Leisure Services program registrations and memberships saw an up tic since the
pandemic $176). Income on investments had an unfavorable variance of (-$221) as interest rates
remained low.

TABLE 5
Summary of General Fund Budget - Original and Final
Appropriations vs. Actual
In Thousands

(Over)
Actual Under
Original Final Change Expenditure Final Budget
Department:

Town Clerk $ 279 $ 360 $ 81 $ 360 $ -
Town Council 401 404 3 404 -
Town Manager 611 611 - 596 15
Corporation Counsel 467 467 - 462 5
Registrar of Voters 255 250 (5) 163 87
Information Technology 1,118 1,230 112 1,230 -
Financial Services 2,359 2,419 60 2,419 -
Assessment 768 768 - 752 16
Human Resources 486 531 45 531 -
Fire 13,254 14,383 1,129 14,383 -
Police 16,970 18,007 1,037 18,007 -
Community Development 2,285 2,548 263 2,548 -
Public Works 12,268 11,473 (795) 11,465 8

Facilities 2,250 2,291 41 2,291
Library 3,211 3,152 (59) 3,152 -
Leisure and Social Services 3,303 3,494 191 3,494 -
Education 175,556 175,556 - 175,499 57
Debt and Sundry 55,176 54,447 (729) 54,047 400
Transfers Out 17,427 19,454 2,027 19,499 (45)
Total $ 308,444 $ 311,845 $ 3,401 $ 311,302 543
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Changes to departmental budgets resulted from resolutions relating to grant funds, transfers between
departments, and transfers of current year surplus to other funds. Significant variances between the
original and amended budget result from the following:

The budget of the Town Clerk increased $81 due to the receipt of grant for the preservation of
historical documents and various State grants to aid municipalities.

The Department of Information Technology’s budget increased $112. This is primarily due to
higher than expected network and software maintenance costs.

The Financial Services budget increased $60 primarily from staff reclassifications during the
year.

The final budget of the Fire Department was $1,129 higher than that originally adopted. The
retirement of four firefighters attributed to the increase. In addition, there were a number of
vacancies resulting in an increase overtime due to minimum staffing requirements.

The Police Department budget had an increase of $1,037 from the originally adopted budget as
a result of eleven retirements during the year.

The Department of Community Development’s budget increased $263 the increase in
temporary payroll necessary for increased building inspections and processing of building
permits. In addition, new staff was higher during the year at higher rates of pay than their
predecessors.

The Department of Public Work’s budget decreased $795 primarily due to solid waste disposal
costs coming in well under budget.

The final budget for the Library decreased $59 to over other departmental overages at fiscal
year-end.

The final Debt and Sundry budget was decreased $774 to cover overages in other departments
at year end.

The final budget for transfers to other funds increased $2,073 from the original budget as a
portion of the General Fund Surplus was transferred to the Capital Non Recurring Fund for
future vehicle and equipment purchases the Risk Management & Utility Services Fund to
mitigate future rising health claims expense and utility costs.

General Fund Expenditure Variance

In comparison to final appropriations, actual expenditures were $543 less than budgeted.

The Departments of the Town Manager, Corporation Counsel, Assessment, Public Works and
Education saw savings ($101) primarily in savings in non-personal expenses.

Debt and Sundry was under budget ($355) due to savings in contingency.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2022 the Town had $401.9 million (net of accumulated depreciation) invested in a broad
range of capital assets including land, land improvements, buildings, park facilities, vehicles, furniture
and equipment, and infrastructure (such as roads, bridges, dams, storm sewers, and traffic signals) as
detailed in Table 6. This amount represents a net increase of $9.1 million from the prior year.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2022

TABLE 6
Capital Assets at Year-end
Net of Depreciation
In Millions
Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
Land $ 105 § 105  $ - $ - $ 105 § 10.
Construction In Progress 124 1 1191 1.1 0.9 125.2 120.
Buildings and Land
Improvements 149.8 161.6 6.9 7.7 156.7 169.
Furniture and Equipment 10.0 24 - - 10.0 2.
Vehicles 8.7 4.4 0.4 - 9.1 4.
Right-to-use - Leased Assets 21 0.2 23
Infrastructure 88.1 86.2 - - 88.1 86.
Total Capital Assets $ 3933 § 3842 § 86 $ 86 $ 4019 $ 392

With the completion of numerous reconstruction projects, ongoing costs associated with the
replacement of a radio system, the purchase of various vehicles and fire apparatus, the Town continues
to invest in its infrastructure and capital assets. Town has no plans to fund current operations from the
proceeds of debt issuance. Detailed information about the Town’s capital assets is presented in note 5
to the basic financial statements.

Long-Term Debt

On June 30, 2022, the Town had $456.6 in bonds outstanding versus $134.2 at the end of the prior
year.

Table 7
Outstanding Debt at Year-End
In Millions

Governmental Business-Type Total
Activities Activities Primary Government
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
General Obligation Bonds
(Backed by the Town) $ 4566 $§ 1342 $ - $ - $ 4566 $§ 134.2
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2022

The reduction in outstanding debt results from principal payments on existing debt of $16,850 in fiscal
year 2022, offset by the issuance of $15,000 in general obligation bonds in February 2022 as well as
the sale of Pension Obligation Bonds (POB) of $324,275 in July for 2021 to fully fund our unfunded
actuarially determined accrued pension liability. Long-term debt is discussed in greater detail in note 7
to the financial statements. The Town’s general obligation bonds continue to carry the highest ratings
awarded by both Moody’s Investors Services, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s Financial Services, LLC (Aaa
and AAA, respectively). These ratings, which have been assigned to the Town since 1972, were
reaffirmed by the rating agencies in February 2022.

The State limits the amount of general obligation debt towns can issue based upon a State mandated
formula calculated on the type of debt and tax base. The Town’s total debt, as calculated by State
guidelines, is significantly below the $1.88 billion State imposed limit. The Town has adopted its own
capital financing guidelines which state that annual debt service as a percentage of General Fund
expenditures shall not exceed 10% and is targeted to be 8% or less. Actual debt service for fiscal year
2022, inclusive of debt service of the Blue Back Square Fund, was 5.6% of General Fund expenditures.
The General Fund portion of debt service was 4.6% of General Fund expenditures. More information on
the Town'’s debt is available in Tables 8, 9 and 10 in the statistical section of this document.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The fiscal year 2023 budget has been unique because it comes during a time when rising home prices,
significant supply chain issues and the unprecedented rate of inflation, combined with the mandated
property revaluation, have come together to create a perfect storm of issues and concerns. The most
noteworthy concern is the impact of property values in certain neighborhoods, resulting in significant
property tax increases. In an effort to try to smooth out property tax increases, this budget reflects a two
year phase-in of the 2021 Grand List real property increases. The phase-in will reflect a 75% increase
of the difference between the 2020 and 2021 Grand List for FY 2023 with the remaining phase-in of
25% to be applied to the FY 2024 budget.

In addition, the Governor and State Legislature have focused on local tax reform as part of their
biennial budget. As a result, a state-wide uniform mill rate of 32.46 has been established for motor
vehicles. Any City/Town who has adopted a mill rate greater than 32.46 for motor vehicles will receive a
grant which will offset that loss in revenue. The Town Council normally adopts a uniform mill rate for all
taxable property, including motor vehicles. The adopted uniform mill rate for FY 2023 is 40.68. As a
result of the new state legislation, the Town will tax residents at the rate of 32.46 for motor vehicles and
40.68 for real estate and commercial personal property and receive a grant from the State for $5,186 to
compensate for the lost revenue related to the lower mill rate.

As we start our recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic, we strive to continue to provide quality services
to Town residents, business owners and guests. The adopted budget stays on that path as service
levels remain unchanged and the property tax increase reflects a level necessary to achieve a
balanced budget.

In fiscal year 2022, the Town closed on a Pension Obligation Bond (POB) sale of $324M that resulted
in a fully funded pension liability and also generated future pension savings for the Town. This budget
reflects those savings as well as recognizes the creation of a $26.9M reserve fund to be used
exclusively to safeguard against possible future spikes in pension liabilities. The Town also moved most
of its workforce to the State of CT Partnership Plan for health benefits.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (UNAUDITED)
JUNE 30, 2022

The fiscal year 2022 budget was adopted at the height of the pandemic, resulting in negative impacts
on certain non-tax revenues due to the closure of facilities. As an offset to those lost revenues and in
an effort to keep taxes as manageable as possible, $4.135M of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA)
funds were appropriated as General Fund revenue. This adopted budget does not utilize any ARPA
funds as revenue offsets.

The following policies are reflected in this budget:

¢ Continue to assume a property tax collection rate of 99.1%.

e Continue to use conservative revenue estimates in all non-tax and non-municipal aid categories.

e Utilize the Governor’s proposed budget for State aid estimates with the exception of the motor
vehicle mill rate cap and revenue offset grant. We believe this program may be modified or not
be adopted.

¢ Continue to fully fund the Town’s total pension liability which consists of the debt service

payments on the POB’s and the Actuarially Determined Employer Contribution (ADEC).

Adhere to planned phase in of Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB) liabilities.

Explore options for service sharing with other municipalities.

Continue to utilize bond premiums to reduce the impact of debt service payments.

Regular rebidding of contracts for goods and services.

Continued efforts to modify employee benefit programs to reduce costs.

Evaluation of best practices for government operations.

The fiscal year Adopted 2023 General Fund budget totals $317,082 and represents an increase of
$8,640 or 2.80% from fiscal year 2022. The municipal services portion of the budget totals $119,116;
an increase of $1,873 or 1.60%. The education budget totals $181,187, an increase of $5,6310r 3.21%.
The capital financing budget for both municipal and education services is $16,779,461, an increase of
$1,136 or 7.26%. In order to finance the budget, an increase in current year property tax revenue of
$11,586 or 4.34% is required. Property taxes are the primary source of revenue for municipalities in
Connecticut and increases in property tax revenue are generated from growth in the value of taxable
property and increases in the tax rate. As a fully developed community, growth in the Town’s taxable
property is through re-use of existing property.

CONTACTING THE TOWN’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with
a general overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town’s accountability for the monies it
receives. If you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the
Department of Financial Services, Town of West Hartford, 50 South Main Street, West Hartford,
Connecticut 06107, (860) 561-7460, or visit the Town’s website at http:/www.westhartfordct.gov.
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EXHIBIT |
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Component Unit

Primary Government West Hartford
Governmental  Business-Type Special
Activities Activities Total Services District
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 96,415 $ 2 3 96,417 $ -
Investments 51,001 - 51,001 -
Receivables, Net 21,201 225 21,426 17
Supplies 108 - 108 -
Prepaid Items 67 12 79 -
Capital Assets:
Assets Not Being Depreciated 134,666 1,151 135,817 -
Assets Being Depreciated, Net 258,644 7,428 266,072 -
Total Assets 562,102 8,818 570,920 17
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding 826 - 826 -
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 108,306 1,660 109,966 -
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 39,825 578 40,403 -
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 148,957 2,238 151,195 -
LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables 13,255 268 13,523 5
Payroll Liabilities 6,179 77 6,256
Other Current Liabilities 2,494 - 2,494 -
Internal Balances (3,531) 3,531 - -
Unearned Revenue 30,204 718 30,922 -
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due Within One Year 34,275 130 34,405 -
Due in More Than One Year 812,846 5,420 818,266 -
Total Liabilities 895,722 10,144 905,866 5
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding 236 - 236 -
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB 3,963 58 4,021 -
Leases Receivable 5,731 215 5,946
Advance Property Tax Collections 14,899 - 14,899 12
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 24,829 273 25,102 12
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 248,059 8,253 256,312 -
Restricted For:
Grants 1,018 - 1,018 -
Cemetery 1,267 - 1,267 -
Town Programs 636 - 636 -
Loans 3 - 3 -
Perpetual Care:
Nonexpendable 82 - 82 -
Unrestricted (460,557) (7,614) (468,171) -
Total Net Position $ (209492 _$ 639 _$ (208,853) _$ -

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT IiI
(CONTINUED)

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit 11I) $ 70,274

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit |) are
different because of the following:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Governmental Capital Assets 708,027
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (314,717)
Net Capital Assets 393,310

Other long-term assets and deferred outflows of resources are
not available to pay for current-period expenditures and,
therefore, are not recorded in the funds:

Property Tax Receivables Greater Than 60 Days 1,780
Interest Receivable on Property Taxes 962
Housing Loans Receivable 2,380
Interest Receivable on Housing Loans 416
Grants 3,412
Deferred Charges on Refunding 826
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 108,306
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 39,825

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of

risk management and utility services to individual funds. The assets and

liabilities of the internal service funds are reported with governmental

activities in the statement of net position. 19,287

Long-term liabilities and deferred inflows of resources, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds:

Bonds and Notes Payable (456,585)
Interest Payable on Bonds and Notes (8,918)
Lease Liability (2,103)
Compensated Absences (22,522)
Bond Premium (10,793)
Net Pension Liability (117,568)
Net OPEB Liability (227,582)
Deferred Charges on Refunding (236)
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB (3,963)
Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I) $ (209,492)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT IV
(CONTINUED)

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

RECONCILIATION TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Net Change in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds (Exhibit IV) $ 28,916

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities (Exhibit Il) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities, the cost of

those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense:
Capital Outlay 21,418
Depreciation/Amortization Expense (14,598)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported as
revenues in the funds, and revenues recognized in the funds are not reported in the statement of activities:

Property Tax Receivable - Accrual Basis Change (257)
Property Tax Interest and Lien Revenue - Accrual Basis Change (119)
Housing Loans Accrued Interest (187)
Housing Loans Receivable (386)
Grants (148)
Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refundings (205)
Change in Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions 83,499
Change in Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB 8,276

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to governmental
funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds report
the effect of premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are
amortized and deferred in the statement of activities. The details of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items are as follows:

Bond Proceeds (339,275)
Bond Premium (1,826)
Bond Principal Payments 16,850
Lease Payments 309

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds.

Compensated Absences 1,693
Accrued Interest (6,892)
Amortization of Deferred Charge on Refundings 23
Amortization of Bond Premiums 2,258
Change in Net Pension Liability 146,893
Change in Net OPEB Liability (17,177)
Change in Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions 35,295
Change in Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB (705)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs to individual funds. The net
revenue of certain activities of internal services funds is reported with governmental activities. (4,661)

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I1) 3 (41,006)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS
Current:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Current Assets

Noncurrent:
Capital Assets:
Assets Not Being Depreciated
Assets Being Depreciated, Net
Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts and Other Payables
Payroll Liabilities
Due to Other Funds
Risk Management Claims
Unearned Revenue
Compensated Absences
Current Maturities on Lease Liability
Current Maturities on Notes Payable
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Lease Liability
Notes Payable
Risk Management Claims
Total Noncurrent Liabilities

Total Liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Inflows Related to Leases
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

NET POSITION
Invested in Capital Assets
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

EXHIBIT V

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Leisure Internal

Services Fund

Service Funds

$ 2 $ 5,263
- 24,523
225 17
12 3
239 29,806
1,151 -
7,428 -
8,579 -
8,818 29,806
1,660 -
578 -
2,238 -
268 535
77 16
3,531 -
- 704
718 -
49 -

35

46
4,724 1,255
71 -
1,802 -
3,302 -

94

151
- 9,264
5,420 9,264
10,144 10,519
215 -
58 -
273 -

8,253
(7,614) 19,287
$ 639 $ 19,287
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

OPERATING REVENUES
Fund Premiums
Charges for Services
Employee Contributions
Other
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative Expense
Personal Services
Employee Benefits
Insurance and Program Services
Utilities
Other Operating Expense
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUE
Income on Investments

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

AND TRANSFERS
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
TRANSFERS IN
TRANSFERS OUT
CHANGE IN NET POSITION
Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT VI

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Leisure Internal

Services Fund

Service Funds

$ - $ 37,799
4,105 -
- 8,655

3 82
4,108 46,536
- 379
1,309 -
(3,473) 38,375
- 4,556

528 4,660
2,281 -
909 -
1,554 47,970
2,554 (1,434)
- (3,172)
2,554 (4,606)
273 -
70 -
(267) (55)
2,630 (4,661)
(1,991) 23,948
$ 639 $ 19,287




EXHIBIT VII
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Business-Type Governmental
Activities Activities
Leisure Internal
Services Fund Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Employees $ - $ 8,655
Cash Received from Operating Funds - 37,799
Cash Received from Customers 4,366 -
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (1,371) -
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (2,247) (9,585)
Cash Payment to Providers for Benefits (460) (37,718)
Other Operating Receipts 3 80
Payments for Interfund Services Used - (166)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 291 (935)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from Other Funds 70 -
Transfers to Other Funds (267) (55)
Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities (197) (55)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal paid on note (
Principal paid on lease (30)
Acquisition of Capital Assets (
Net Cash Flows Provided (Used) by Capital and Related Financing Activities (

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Gain on Investments - 62
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - (928)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2 6,191
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 2 $ 5263

RECONCILIATRION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss) $ 2,554 $ (1,434)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation/Amortization 909 -
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Receivables (216) 17)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items (10) (2)
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows Related to Pension (1,280) -
(Increase) Decrease in Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB (120) -
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts and Other Payables 64 47
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities (62) (37)
Increase (Decrease) in Net Pension Liability (2,253) -
Increase (Decrease) in Net OPEB Liability 250 -
Increase (Decrease) in Risk Management Claim Liability - 674
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds 293 (166)
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows Related to Pension (541) -
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB 11 -
Increase (Decrease) in Deferred Inflows Related to Leases 215 -
Increase (Decrease) in Unearned Revenue 477 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 3 291 3 (935)
CONTRIBUTION OF CAPITAL ASSETS FROM TOWN 273 $ -

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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EXHIBIT Vil
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Pension and
Other
Employee
Benefit
Trust Funds
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 10,765
Investments:
Mutual Funds 406,329
Common Stock 36,973
Alternative Investments 49,344
Receivables:
Accounts and Other Receivables 28
Interest and Dividends 350
Total Assets 503,789
LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables 46
NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits 489,126
Restricted for OPEB Benefits 14,617
Total Net Position $ 503,743

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

ADDITIONS:
Contributions:
Employer
Plan Members
Other Revenue
Total Contributions

Investment Income (Loss):
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments
Interest
Dividends
Total Investment Income (Loss)
Less: Investment Expense
Net Investment Income (Loss)

Total Additions
DEDUCTIONS:
Benefits
Administration
Total Deductions
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position - Beginning of Year

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

EXHIBIT IX

Pension and
Other
Employee
Benefit
Trust Funds

$ 340,078

3,615

343,693

(75,426)
68
7,504

(67,854)
(585)

(68,439)

275,254

54,347
364

54,711

220,543

283,200

$ 503,743




NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town of West Hartford, Connecticut (the Town) have been
prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant policies of the Town are
described below.

A. Reporting Entity

The Town was incorporated in 1854. The Town operates under a Council-Manager form
of government and provides the following services as authorized by its Charter: public
safety, community maintenance, human and cultural resources, education, and general
government.

GAAP requires that the reporting entity include the primary government, organizations
for which the primary government is financially accountable, and other organizations for
which the nature and significance of their relationship with the primary government are
such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete. A government is financially accountable for a legally separate
organization if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing body and
there is a potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose
specific financial burdens on, the government.

The primary government includes the Town of West Hartford, the Town of West Hartford
Board of Education, and the Town of West Hartford Library Board, as the Town
exercises legal powers on their behalf. All functions included in the primary government
are under the jurisdiction of the Town Council and administered by the Town Manager
as determined on the basis of budget adoption. The West Hartford-Bloomfield Health
District, the West Hartford Housing Authority, and the Metropolitan District Commission
(MDC), a quasi-municipal corporation that provides water and sewer services to West
Hartford and other member communities, are excluded from this report.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

Pursuant to Chapter 105A of the Connecticut General Statutes, the Town established a
special service district to be known as “West Hartford Center Special Service District.”
The purpose of the West Hartford Center Special Service District shall be to promote the
economic and general welfare of the citizens and property owners of West Hartford both
within and without such district through the preservation, enhancement, protection and
development of the economic health and vitality of West Hartford. This legally separate
entity is included as a component unit due to its close relationship to, or financial
integration with the Town. This entity has its own separate corporate powers and cannot
be reported as a component unit of another entity. The governing body of the special
service district is substantially the same as the governing body of the Town.

(42)



NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

A. Reporting Entity (Continued)

Discretely Presented Component Unit (Continued)

The Town is not responsible for the operational management of the special service
district and the services provided by the district are not provided entirely to the Town or
exclusively benefit the Town. Separate financial statements have not been prepared for
the West Hartford Center Special Service District.

Fiduciary Component Units

The Town has established a single-employer Public Retirement Systems (PERS) and a
postretirement retiree health plan (OPEB) to provide retirement benefits and
postretirement health care benefits to employees and their beneficiaries. The Town
appoints a majority of the Pension Board and is required to make contributions to the
pension and OPEB plans and can impose its will.

The financial statements of the fiduciary component units are reported as Pension and
OPEB Trust funds in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Separate financial
statements have not been prepared for the fiduciary component units.

. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the
statement of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town.
The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements where
appropriate. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which
rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a
given function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those
that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues
include 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from
goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and
contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items that do not meet the criteria for
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds,
and fiduciary funds, including fiduciary component units, even though the latter are
excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major individual governmental
funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and
fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses
are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.
Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants
and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements
imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues
are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the Town
considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the
current fiscal period, with the exception of grant revenues which are considered
available if they are collected 180 days of the end of the current fiscal year. Expenditures
generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Charges for services, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are
all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the
current fiscal period. Only the portion of housing loans receivable due within the current
fiscal period is considered to be susceptible to accrual as revenue of the current period.
All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash
is received.

The Town reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the Town’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the Town, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Capital Project Funds

The Capital Project Funds are used to account for financial resources to acquire or
construct major capital facilities, other than those financed by proprietary funds.

ARPA Fund

The ARPA Fund accounts for activity related to the American Recue Plan Act federal
grant program. The major source of revenue for this fund is federal assistance.

Debt Service Fund

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for,
and the payment of, general long-term principal, interest, and related costs.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation
(Continued)

The Town reports the following major proprietary fund:

Leisure Services Fund
The Leisure Services Fund accounts for recreation activities of the Town.

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds

The Internal Service Funds account for the risk management activities and utilities
services of the Town.

Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds account for the fiduciary
activities of the defined benefit pension plans and Other Postemployment Benefits
Trust Fund, which accumulate resources for pension and health benefit payments to
qualified employees upon retirement.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the
government-wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments in
lieu of taxes and other charges between certain Town functions because the elimination
of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the
various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants
for goods, services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise,
general revenues include property taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing
operations. The principal operating revenues of the Leisure Services Fund, the Town’s
Risk Management Fund and the Utility Services Fund are charges to internal and
external customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise fund
and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting
this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s
policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
Unrestricted resources are used in the following order: committed, assigned then
unassigned.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. Deposits and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in banks and short-term investments in
certificates of deposits having an original maturity of 90 days or less, money market
accounts and the state of Connecticut’s Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF), which has
legislative approval for municipal use. The Town uses a pooled investment account for
all funds except the Pension Trust Fund to maximize cash management opportunities.
Section 18-41 of the Town code requires apportionment of interest income, which is
done on a monthly basis, based on the average daily cash balance of all funds in the
pooled cash account.

Investments are reported at fair value.

. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either “due to/from other
funds” (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e.,
the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds
are reported as “due to/from other funds.” Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-
wide financial statements as “internal balances.” All trade and property tax receivables
are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

Property taxes are levied on July 1 on all assessed property on the Grand List as of
October 1 prior to the beginning of the fiscal year. Taxes are due July 1; however, at the
discretion of the Town, and for the convenience of the taxpayer, real estate and
business personal property tax bills are payable in two installments - July 1 and
January 1. Motor vehicle taxes are due in one installment on July 1. Supplemental motor
vehicle taxes (for vehicles registered between October 1 and August 1) are due in one
installment on January 1. Taxes become delinquent one month after the installment is
due. Delinquent taxes are billed at least four times a year, with interest charged at the
rate of 1.5% per month retroactive to the original due date.

In accordance with state law, the oldest outstanding tax is collected first. Prior to June 30
of each year, liens are automatically placed on outstanding real estate tax accounts, with
legal demands and alias tax warrants used in the collection of personal property and
motor vehicle tax bills. Delinquent motor vehicle and personal property accounts are
transferred to a suspense account after three years, at which time they cease to be
carried as receivables.

Real estate, motor vehicle and personal property accounts are no longer collectible 15
years after due date in accordance with State Statutes. An amount of $468 has been
established as an allowance for uncollectible taxes at June 30, 2022. This represents
16.22% of all property taxes receivable.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

F. Supplies and Prepaid Items

All supplies are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. Supplies of
governmental funds are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when
purchased.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and
are recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g.,
roads, bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable
governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide financial
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial, individual
cost of more than $5,000 ($100,000 for infrastructure) (amounts not rounded) and an
estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or
estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at acquisition value.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend assets lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Property, plant, equipment and right-to-use assets of the Town is depreciated using the
straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 2510 50 Years
Land Improvements 20 Years
Vehicles 5to 15 Years
Furniture and Equipment 3 to 20 Years
Infrastructure 15to 60 Years
Right-to-Use Asset — Buildings 51to 20 Years
Right-to-Use Asset — Leased Equipment 3to 10 Years

. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to
future periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

The Town reports a deferred charge on refunding and deferred outflows related to
pension and OPEB in the government-wide statement of net position and proprietary
funds statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount
is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. A
deferred outflow of resources related to pension and OPEB results from differences
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs.
These amounts are deferred and included in pension and OPEB expense in a
systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of the expected
remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the
pension and OPEB plan (active employees and inactive employees).

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net assets that applies to
future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that
time. The Town reports a deferred charge on refunding in the government-wide
statement of net position. The Town also reports advance property tax collection in the
government-wide statement of net position and in the governmental funds balance sheet
and deferred inflows of resources related to pension and OPEB results from changes of
assumption or other inputs and difference between projected and actual earnings in the
government-wide financial statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding
results from the difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition
price. This amount is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded
or refunding debt. Advance property tax collections represent taxes inherently
associated with a future period. This amount is recognized during the period in which the
revenue is associated. A deferred inflow of resources related to pension and OPEB
results from differences between changes in assumptions or other inputs and difference
between projected and actual earnings. These amounts are deferred and included in
OPEB expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average
of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits
through the pension and OPEB plans (active employees and inactive employees). Also,
for governmental funds, the Town reports unavailable revenue, which arises only under
the modified accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds report unavailable
revenues from several sources: property taxes, long-term loans, and other revenues.
These amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the
period in which the amounts become available.

Long-Term Obligations
In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as

liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary
fund type statement of net position.
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NOTE 1

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Obligations (Continued)

Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of any significant
applicable bond premium or discount. Significant bond issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service
expenditures.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of
debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt
issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are
reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual
debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Pension Liability

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of
projected benefits that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension
liability), net of the pension plan’s fiduciary net position. The pension plan’s fiduciary net
position is determined using the same valuation methods that are used by the pension
plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net position. The net pension
liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the
employer’s prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.

Net OPEB Liability

The net OPEB liability is measured as the portion of the present value of projected
benefit payments to be provided to current active and inactive employees that is
attributed to those employees’ past periods of service (total OPEB liability), less the
amount of the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position. The OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position
is determined using the same valuation methods that are used by the OPEB plan for
purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net position. The net OPEB liability is
measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end of the employer’'s
prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period.

Compensated Absences

A limited amount of vacation earned may be accumulated by employees until termination
of their employment, at which time they are paid for accumulated vacation. Vacation
leave liability is valued using current salary costs, as well as any salary-related
payments that are directly and incrementally connected with leave payments to
employees. (The calculation includes any nonvested leave earned by employees that
are considered likely to vest for both sick and vacation leave). Sick leave is accrued and
is contingent upon absences being caused by employees’ future illnesses or retirements.
The sick leave calculation is also based on current salary costs as well as salary-related
payments.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
L. Compensated Absences (Continued)

Eligible Town employees earn 15 days of sick leave per year and 10-25 days of vacation
per year depending on the employees’ length of service. A maximum of 150 days of sick
leave and 50 days of vacation leave may be accrued. An employee leaving the employ
of the Town is entitled to be paid a maximum of 50 days for vacation and 70-100 days
unused sick leave upon retirement, based upon union contract.

Board of Education employees earn 10-18 days of sick leave per year. Maximum sick
leave accrual varies by bargaining units from 90-220 days. Board of Education
employees, with the exception of teachers, earn 10-30 days of vacation leave that
cannot be accrued and must be used within the fiscal year. Upon termination, Board
employees are paid for all unused vacation leave. Unused sick leave is paid only on
retirement to a maximum of 35-60 days depending on bargaining units.

M. Equity

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as “net position” and is
classified in the following categories:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This component of net position consists of capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of
any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of those assets.

Restricted Net Position — Net position is restricted because it is externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or
regulations of other governments or imposed by law through constitutional provisions
or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted Net Position — This component consists of net position that does not
meet the definition of “restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as “fund balance” and is classified
in the following categories:

Nonspendable Fund Balance — This represents amounts that cannot be spent due to
form (e.g., inventories and prepaid amounts).

Restricted Fund Balance — This represents amounts constrained for a specific
purpose by external parties, such as grantors, creditors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of their governments.

Committed Fund Balance — This represents amounts constrained for a specific
purpose by a government using its highest level of decision-making authority (Town
of West Hartford Town Council). A commitment of fund balance and any subsequent
modification or rescission requires a resolution of the West Hartford Town Council.

(50)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
M. Equity (Continued)

Assigned Fund Balance — This balance represents amounts constrained for the
intent to be used for a specific purpose by the Town of West Hartford Town Council.
The Town Council has authorized the finance director to assign fund balance.

Unassigned Fund Balance — This represents fund balance in the General Fund in
excess of nonspendable, restricted, committed and assigned fund balance. If another
governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, it is reported as a negative amount in
unassigned fund balance.

N. Leases

Lessee

The Town of West Hartford, Connecticut is a lessee for noncancellable leases of
buildings and equipment. The Town recognizes a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in the applicable governmental activities or
business-type activities in the government-wide and in the proprietary fund financial
statements. The Town recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of
$10,000 or more.

At the commencement of a lease, the Town initially measures the lease liability at the
present value of payments expected to be made during the lease term.
Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease payments
made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability,
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus
certain initial direct costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a
straight-line basis over its useful life.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the Town determines (1)
the discount rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value,
(2) lease term, and (3) lease payments.

o The Town uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate.
When the interest rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the Town
generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate
for leases.

¢ The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.

e Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability are
composed of fixed payments and the purchase option price that the Town is
reasonably certain to exercise.

The Town monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement

of its lease and will remeasure the lease asset and liability if certain changes occur
that are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease liability.
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NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. Leases (Continued)

Lease assets are reported with other capital assets and lease liabilities are reported
with long- term debt on the statement of net position.

Lessor

The Town of West Hartford, Connecticut is a lessor for a noncancellable lease of a
building. The Town recognizes a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources
in the applicable governmental activities and in the government-wide fund financial
statements.

At the commencement of a lease, the Town initially measures the lease receivable at
the present value of payments expected to be received during the lease term.
Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced by the principal portion of lease
payments received. The deferred inflow of resources is initially measured as the
initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or
before the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflow of
resources is recognized as revenue over the life of the lease term.

Key estimates and judgments include how the Town determines (1) the discount
rate it uses to discount the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) lease term,
and (3) lease receipts.

e The Town uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate
for leases.

e The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease.

e Lease receipts included in the measurement of the lease receivable is

composed of fixed payments from the lessee.

The Town monitors changes in circumstances that would require a
remeasurement of its lease and will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred
inflows of resources if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect
the amount of the lease receivable.
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(IN THOUSANDS)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

O. Fund Balance Flow Assumptions

Sometimes the Town will fund outlays for a particular purpose from both restricted and
unrestricted resources (the total of committed, assigned and unassigned fund balance).
In order to calculate the amounts to report as restricted, committed, assigned and
unassigned fund balance in the governmental fund financial statements, a flow
assumption must be made about the order in which the resources are considered to be
applied. It is the Town’s policy to consider restricted fund balance to have been depleted
before using any of the components of unrestricted fund balance. Further, when the
components of unrestricted fund balance can be used for the same purpose, committed
fund balance is depleted first, followed by assigned fund balance. Unassigned fund
balance is applied last.

. Adoption of New Accounting Standards

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases

In June 2017, the GASB issued GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. This standard
requires the recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that previously
were classified as operating leases and as inflows of resources or outflows of resources
recognized based on the payment provisions of the contract. It establishes a single
model for lease accounting based on the foundational principle that leases are
financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this standard, a lessee is
required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a
lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.

The City adopted the requirements of the guidance effective July 1, 2021 and has
elected to apply the provisions of this standard to the beginning of the period of
adoption.

. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management
to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during
the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
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NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY
A. Budgetary Information

The budgetary basis follows the modified accrual basis of accounting except that
encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper charge against an appropriation in
the year the purchase order is issued, the budgetary basis does not recognize on-behalf
payments of the State Teachers’ Pension and OPEB plans, refunding transactions,
inventory or BOE intergovernmental grants. In accordance with the Town Charter,
Chapter VII, not later than 130 days before the end of the fiscal year, each department
files a detailed statement of estimated revenues and proposed expenditures for the
ensuing fiscal year. The Superintendent of Schools files a similar statement with the
Board of Education and Town Manager at least 115 days prior to the end of the fiscal
year.

Not later than 110 days prior to the end of the fiscal year, the Town Manager submits to
the Town Council a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

Not later than 75 days before the end of the fiscal year, two or more public hearings are
conducted at locations throughout the Town to obtain taxpayer comments.

Not later than 65 days before the end of the fiscal year, the budget is legally enacted
through passage of an ordinance. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund,
department, and character of expenditure. The legal level of budgetary control is at both
the character and department level. Each department’s budget is appropriated at four
characters of expenditure (personal services, nonpersonal services, capital outlay and
debt and sundry). The budget for education is appropriated at the department level.

The Town Manager is authorized to transfer appropriated amounts within departments
as long as the characters of expenditure remain the same. Transfers between
characters of expenditure and departments must be approved by resolution of the Town
Council. During the last three months of the fiscal year, the Town Council may delegate
this authority to transfer between departments to the Town’s administration. Any
revisions that alter the total revenues or expenditures must be approved by the Town
Council.

Legally adopted operating budgets were employed during the year for the General Fund
and all special revenue funds, except the following: ARPA Fund, Cafeteria Fund, Drug
Enforcement Fund, School Grants Fund, School Special Programs Fund, School
Interscholastic Sports Fund, Police Home Ownership Program Fund, C.F. Morway Fund,
The Town That Cares Fund, School Donations Trust, Affordable Housing Trust, Student
Activity, and Veterans Memorial. A budget is also adopted for the Leisure Services Fund
(enterprise fund). The Capital Projects Fund budget is adopted on a project basis for the
life of the project, and a budgetary comparison is included as a schedule in this report
and includes the activity of the Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditure Fund.

(54)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)
A. Budgetary Information (Continued)

For financial statement comparisons, budgetary results have been reconciled to GAAP.
Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Town Council.
Supplemental budget amendments totaling $3,401 were made to the adopted fiscal year
2022 General Fund budget to increase total appropriations.

Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-end with the exception of the Capital
Projects Fund.

Appropriations in addition to those contained in the budget, made for the purpose of
meeting a public emergency threatening the public peace, life, health or property within
the Town and emergency appropriations, the total amount of which shall not exceed 3%
of the current tax levy in any one fiscal year, may be made upon the recommendation of
the Town Manager and by a vote of not less than two-thirds of the entire membership of
the Town Council. A public hearing, at which any elector or taxpayer of the Town shall
have an opportunity to be heard, shall be held prior to making such appropriation, notice
of which hearing shall be given in a newspaper having circulation in the Town not more
than ten (10) nor less than five (5) days prior to such hearing.

Such hearing and notice of hearing may be waived if the Town Council, by at least two-
thirds of its entire membership, shall decide that a delay in making the emergency
appropriation would jeopardize the public peace, life, health, or property within the Town.
In the absence of an available unappropriated and unencumbered General Fund cash
balance to meet such appropriation, additional means of financing shall be provided in
such manner, consistent with the provisions of the Connecticut General Statutes and of
the Town Charter, as may be determined by the Town Council.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g.,
purchase orders, contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as commitment or
assignment of fund balances and do not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the
commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the subsequent year.
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CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-
402). Deposits may be made in a “qualified public depository” as defined by Statute or, in
amounts not exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit, in an
“out of state bank” as defined by the Statutes, which is not a “qualified public depository.”

The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit municipalities to invest in:
1) obligations of the United States and its agencies, 2) highly rated obligations of any state of
the United States or of any political subdivision, authority or agency thereof, and 3) shares or
other interests in custodial arrangements or pools maintaining constant net asset values and
in highly rated no-load open end money market and mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating
net asset values) whose portfolios are limited to obligations of the United States and its
agencies, and repurchase agreements fully collateralized by such obligations. Other
provisions of the Statutes cover specific municipal funds with particular investment authority.
The provisions of the Statutes regarding the investment of municipal pension funds do not
specify permitted investments. Therefore, investment of such funds is generally controlled by
the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the provisions of the applicable plan.

The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State
Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF). These investment pools are under the control of the
State Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer's Cash Management Advisory
Board, and are regulated under the state statutes and subject to annual audit by the
Auditors of Public Accounts. Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost basis
with an investment portfolio that is designed to attain a market-average rate of return
throughout budgetary and economic cycles. Investors accrue interest daily based on actual
earnings, less expenses and transfers to the designated surplus reserve, and the fair value
of the position in the pool is the same as the value of the pool shares.

A. Deposits

Deposit Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposit will
not be returned. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The
deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes. Deposits may
be placed with any qualified public depository that has a branch office in the state of
Connecticut. Connecticut General Statutes require that each depository maintain
segregated collateral (not required to be based on a security agreement between the
depository and the municipality and, therefore, not perfected in accordance with federal
law) in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based upon the
depository’s risk-based capital ratio.

Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment
Risk Disclosures, $49,791 of the Town’s bank balance of $50,058 was exposed to
custodial credit risk as follows:

Uninsured and Uncollateralized $ 44787
Uninsured and Collateral Held by the Pledging Bank’s

Trust Department, Not in the Town’s Name 5,004

Total Amount Subject to Custodial Credit Risk $ 49,791

(56)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
A. Deposits (Continued)

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and purchased within 90 days of maturity. At
June 30, 2022, the Town’s cash equivalents amounted to $43,778. The following table
provides a summary of the Town’s cash equivalents (excluding U.S. government
guaranteed obligations) as rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations.

Standard
& Poor’'s
State Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) AAAmM
Principal *
* Not Rated

STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short-term money market instruments with an
average maturity of less than 60 days. There were no limitations or restrictions on any
withdrawals due to redemption notice periods, liquidity fees, or redemption gates.

B. Investments

As of June 30, 2022, the Town had the following investments in the Pension, OPEB, and
Risk Management Funds:

Investment Maturities (Years)

Fair Less More
Investment Type Value Than 1 1-10 Than 10
Interest-Bearing Investments:
Certificates of Deposit $ - 9 - $ -3 -
U.S. Government Securities 6,649 39 4,703 1,907
U.S. Government Agencies 2,459 8 1,440 1,011
Corporate Bonds 1,091 5 917 169
Total 10,199 _§ 52§ 7,060 3 3,087
Other Investments:
Common Stock 36,973
Mutual Funds 447,131
Alternative Investments 49,344
Total Investments $ 543,647

Interest Rate Risk

The Town does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest
rates.
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NOTE3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Investments (Continued)

Credit Risk — Investments

As indicated above, State Statutes limit the investment options of cities and towns. The
Town has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices. Generally,
credit risk is the risk that an issuer of a debt type investment will not fulfill its obligation to
the holder of the investment. This is measured by assignment of a rating by a nationally
recognized rating organization. U.S. government obligations explicitly guaranteed by the
U.S. government are not considered to have credit risk exposure. Presented below is the
average rating of investments in debt securities.

u.s. u.s.
Corporate Government Government Mutual
Average Rating Bonds Securities Agencies Funds
Aaa $ 1,091 $ 6,649 $ 2,459 $ -
Unrated - - - 447,131
Total $ 1,091 $ 6649 $ 2459 § 447,131

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Town’s general investment policy does not allow for an investment in any one issuer
that is in excess of 5% of the Town’s total investments at the time of purchase.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for an investment is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty (the institution that pledges collateral or repurchase agreement securities to
the Town or that sells investments to or buys them for the Town), the Town will not be
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party. At June 30, 2022, the Town’s investments, other than
open-end mutual funds and other pooled accounts that are not categorized as to
custodial credit risk, were uninsured and unregistered securities held by the
counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, and were not in the Town’s name.
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NOTE3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Investments (Continued)

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by GAAP. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements);
followed by quoted prices in inactive markets or for similar assets or with observable
inputs (Level 2 measurements); and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3
measurements). The Town has the following recurring fair value measurements as of
June 30, 2022:

June 30, Fair Value Measurements Using
2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Investments by Fair Value Level:
U.S. Government Securities $ 6,649 $ 6,649 $ - $
U.S. Government Agencies 2,459 - 2,459
Corporate Bonds 1,091 - 1,091
Common Stock 36,973 35,711 1,262
Mutual Funds 447,131 447,044 87
Total Investments by
Fair Value Level 494,303 $ 489,404 3 4,899 $
Investments Measured at
Net Asset Value (NAV):
Alternative Investments 49,344
Total Investments $ 543,647

Debt and equity securities classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using
prices quoted in active markets for those securities. Debt securities classified in Level 2 of
the fair value hierarchy are valued using a matrix pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used
to value securities based on the securities’ relationship to benchmark quoted prices.
Alternative investments primarily represent investments in Limited Partnerships.

The following is a summary of the investment strategies, their liquidity and redemption
notice periods and any restrictions on the liquidity provisions of the investments in
Investment Funds held by the Town as of June 30, 2022 and measured at fair value
using the NAV per share practical expedient. Investment Funds with no current
redemption restrictions may be subject to future gates, lock-up provisions, or other
restrictions, in accordance with their offering documents which would be considered in
fair value measurement and disclosure.

Equity Hedge Funds

This type includes investments in hedge funds that invest both long and short primarily in
U.S. common stock. Management of each hedge fund has the ability to shift investments
from value to growth strategies, from small to large capitalization stocks, and from a net
long position to a net short position. The fair values of the investments in this type have
been determined using the NAV per share of the investments. There are no redemption
notice periods or liquidity restrictions with the equity hedge fund held by the Town. In
addition, there are no unfunded commitments.
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NOTE 3 CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
B. Investments (Continued)

Real Estate Funds

This type includes real estate funds that invest primarily in U.S. commercial real estate.
The fair values of the investments in this type have been determined using the NAV per
share (or its equivalent) of the Plan’s ownership interest in partners’ capital. These
investments can never be redeemed with the funds. Distributions from each fund will be
received as the underlying investments of the funds are liquidated. There are no
redemption notice periods or liquidity restrictions with the real estate fund held by the

Town. In addition, there are no unfunded commitments.

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the Town’s individual major funds and nonmajor, enterprise,
internal service, and fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for

uncollectible accounts, are as follows:

Leisure Nonmajor
Capital Debt Service and Other
General Projects Service Fund Funds Total
Receivables:

Taxes $ 3848 $ - $ - 9 -9 - $ 3,848
Interest* - - - - 350 350
Accounts and Other 726 - 5 5 988 1,724
Housing Loans - - - - 2,377 2,377
Intergovernmental - 3,489 - - 4,039 7,528
Leases 5,806 - - 220 - 6,026
Gross Receivables 10,380 3,489 5 225 7,754 21,853
Less: Allowance for Uncollectibles 468 - - - - 468
Net Total Receivables $§ 9912 $§ 3489 § 5 § 225 $ 7754 $ 21,385

*Accrued interest on property taxes and long-term housing loans in the amount of $- are not

included in the fund financial statements.
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NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Leases Receivable

The Town, acting as lessor, leases various buildings under long-term, noncancelable lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2067. During the year ended June
30, 2022, the Town recognized $151,282 and $174,336 in governmental activities and
$61,343 and $8,593 in business-type activities in lease revenue and interest revenue,
respectively, pursuant to these contracts.

Total future minimum lease payments to be received under the lease agreement are as

follows:
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 $ 70 % 172§ 59 § 7 % 129  § 179
2024 6 172 62 4 68 176
2025 8 172 65 2 73 174
2026 12 171 34 - 46 171
2027 16 171 - - 16 171
2028-2032 148 842 - - 148 842
2033-2037 283 810 - - 283 810
2038-2042 451 755 - - 451 755
2043-2047 646 674 - - 646 674
2048--2052 914 557 - - 914 557
2053-2057 1,092 404 - - 1,092 404
2058-2062 1,389 225 - - 1,389 225
2063-2067 771 23 - - 771 23
Total Minimum Lease Payments $ 5806 $ 5148 § 220§ 13§ 6,026 $ 5,161
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NOTE S5 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Governmental Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
or Amortized:
Land
Construction In Progress
Total Capital Assets Not
Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
and Amortized:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Vehicles
Furniture and Equipment
Right-to-Use - Building
Infrastructure
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized

Less: Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization For:
Buildings
Land Improvements
Vehicles
Furniture and Equipment
Right-to-Use - Building
Infrastructure
Total Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization

Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized, Net

Governmental Activities
Capital Assets, Net

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Beginning Ending
Balance* Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
$ 10,516 - 8 -8 - $ 10,516
119,082 21,409 (15,542) (799) 124,150
129,598 21,409 (15,542) (799) 134,666
286,275 - 6,103 - 292,378
23,665 - 78 - 23,743
13,967 469 193 (123) 14,506
15,274 339 2,559 - 18,172
2,412 - - - 2,412
215,541 - 6,609 - 222,150
557,134 808 15,542 (123) 573,361
(135,697) (6,891) - - (142,588)
(12,678) (1,138) - - (13,816)
(9,582) (750) - 123 (10,209)
(12,916) (818) - - (13,734)
- (352) - - (352)
(129,369) (4,649) - - (134,018)
(300,242) (14,598) - 123 (314,717)
256,892 (13,790) 15,542 - 258,644
$ 386,490 7619 % - % 799) _$ 393,310
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Beginning Ending
Balance* Increases Transfers Decreases Balance
Business-Type Activities:
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
or Amortized:
Construction In Progress $ 942  § 273  $ 64) $ - % 1,151
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
and Amortized:
Buildings and Systems 20,294 - 64 - 20,358
Land Improvements 10,620 - - - 10,620
Furniture and Equipment 1,314 261 - - 1,575
Right-to-Use - Leased Equipment 157 - - - 157
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized 32,385 261 64 - 32,710
Less: Accumulated Depreciation and
Amortization For:
Buildings and Systems (17,649) (320) - - (17,969)
Land Improvements (5,537) (537) - - (6,074)
Furniture and Equipment (1,187) (21) - - (1,208)
Right-to-Use - Leased Equipment - (31) - - (31)
Total Accumulated Depreciation
and Amortization (24,373) (909) - - (25,282)
Total Capital Assets Being
Depreciated and Amortized, Net 8,012 (648) 64 - 7,428
Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 8,954 $ 375)  $ -3 - $ 8,579

*The beginning balance was restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
Depreciation and amortization expense was charged to functions of the Town as follows:

Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 2,898
Public Safety 1,093
Community Maintenance 5,459
Human and Cultural 769
Education 4,379
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense -
Governmental Activities $ 14,598

Business-Type Activities:
Leisure Services Fund $ 909

Construction Commitments

The Town had numerous active construction projects during the year ended June 30, 2022.
The following is a summary of capital projects as of June 30, 2022:

Cumulative
Expenditures
Project and

Authorization Encumbrances

Public Buildings $ 16,031 $ 10,226
Parks and Recreation 9,173 5,024
Infrastructure 57,241 43,401
Miscellaneous 23,384 16,786
Schools 89,875 79,082
Total $ 195,704 $ 154,519

The commitments are being financed with general obligation bonds and state and federal
grants.

NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

Interfund receivable and payable balances at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Interfund Interfund

Receivable Payable
General Fund $ 9,299 $ -
Capital Projects Fund - 2,627
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 3,141
Leisure Services Fund - 3,531
Total $ 9,299 $ 9,299
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NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (CONTINUED)
The above interfund balances are the result of temporary circumstances where one fund is
due amounts based on budgetary or Town Council requirements or funds being temporarily
advanced to provide cash flow.

The following is a schedule of transfers by fund type:

Transfers Out

Capital Debt ARPA Nonmajor Leisure Internal Total

Transfers In General Projects Service Fund Governmental Service Fund Service Transfers In

General $ - $ 276 $ - $ 4,163 $ 1,367 $ 267 $ 55 $ 6,128
Capital Projects 2,037 - - 929 812 - - 3,778
Debt Service Fund 15,554 - - - 15,554
Nonmajor Governmental 1,008 855 - - - - 1,863
Leisure Services Fund - - 50 20 - 70
Total Transfers Out $ 18,599 $ 1,131 $ 50 $ 5,092 3 2,199 $ 267 $ 55 $ 27,393
Note: Transfers represent normal operating procedures required by budgetary or Town

Council action.

NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2022 was as follows:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance* Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental Activities:
Bonds Payable:

General Obligation Bonds $ 134,160 $ 339275 $ (16,850) $ 456,585 $ 24,105
Bond Premium 11,225 1,826 (2,258) 10,793 -
Total Bonds Payable 145,385 341,101 (19,108) 467,378 24,105
Compensated Absences 24,215 8,206 (9,899) 22,522 9,116
Lease Liability 2,412 - (309) 2,103 350
Net OPEB Liability 210,405 17,177 - 227,582 -
Net Pension Liability 264,461 - (146,893) 117,568 -
Risk Management Liability 9,294 38,392 (37,718) 9,968 704

Total Governmental Activities

Long-Term Liabilities $ 656,172 _$ 404876 _$ (213927) _$ 847,121 _$ 34,275
Business-Type Activities:

Notes Payable (Direct Borrowing) $ - 8 251 % 54) $ 197 $ 46
Compensated Absences 119 54 (53) 120 49
Lease Liability 160 (31) 129 35
Net OPEB Liability 3,052 250 - 3,302 -
Net Pension Liability 4,055 - (2,253) 1,802 -

Total Business-Type Activities
Long-Term Liabilities $ 7386 % 555 _§ (2,391) $ 5550 % 130

*The beginning balance was restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87.
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NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

All general obligation long-term bonds are secured by the general revenue raising powers of
the Town. No sinking funds have been established as of June 30, 2022. The net pension
and OPEB liabilities are paid from primarily the General Fund and Leisure Fund.
Compensated absences are paid from revenues of the fund in which the employee is
budgeted.

The liability for compensated absences includes termination payments for unused vacation
and sick leave using the vesting method outlined in GASB Statement No. 16.

Bonds Payable

The annual debt service requirements of the Town’s bonded indebtedness reported in
governmental activities described above are as follows:

General Obligations

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 24,105 $ 15,002 $ 39,107
2024 26,655 10,936 37,591
2025 25,710 10,221 35,931
2026 25,025 9,655 34,580
2027 21,065 8,991 30,056
2028-2032 99,115 37,465 136,580
2033-2037 81,165 26,496 107,661
2038-2042 71,475 16,829 88,304
2043-2047 82,270 6,026 88,296

Total $ 456,585 $ 141,521 $ 598,106
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NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Bonds Payable (Continued)
Principal Amount of Debt Indebtedness

Date of
Original Debt Fiscal Year
Date Purpose Rate % Issue Outstanding Maturity
2/15/2012  General Purpose 2.50-5.00 $ 11648 $ 3,106 2028
2/15/2012  Schools 2.50-5.00 3,352 894 2028
2/5/2014 General Purpose 2.63-5.00 12,830 5,972 2029
2/5/2014 Schools 2.63-5.00 7,170 3,338 2029
3/2/2016 Refunding - General Purpose 2.00-4.00 7,055 3,497 2025
3/2/2016 Refunding - Schools 2.00-4.00 5,240 2,598 2025
2/16/2017  General Purpose 2.00-5.00 12,065 2,366 2032
2/16/2017  Schools 2.00-5.00 4,935 1,039 2032
1/11/2018  General Purpose 2.00-5.00 7,665 4,590 2033
1/11/2018  Schools 2.00-5.00 5,335 3,195 2033
2/5/2019 General Purpose 2.00-5.00 5,745 4,590 2034
2/5/2019 Schools 2.00-5.00 4,255 3,400 2034
7/9/2019 Refunding - General Purpose 5.00 19,990 13,215 2026
12/18/2019  Refunding - General Purpose 4.00-5.00 6,372 5,636 2035
12/18/2019  Refunding - Schools 4.00-5.00 7,478 6,614 2035
1/30/2020  General Purpose 2.00-5.00 10,152 8,812 2035
1/30/2020  Schools 2.00-5.00 6,848 5,943 2035
4/2/2020 Refunding - General Purpose 5.00 2,308 1,213 2024
4/2/2020 Refunding - Schools 5.00 2,317 1,217 2024
11/5/2020  Refunding - General Purpose 1.50-5.00 7,985 6,825 2035
11/5/2020  Refunding - Schools 1.50-5.00 930 795 2035
11/5/2020  Refunding - General Purpose 2.50-5.00 8,806 8,709 2035
11/5/2020  Refunding - Schools 2.50-5.00 3,899 3,856 2035
3/16/2021  General Purpose 2.00-5.00 13,872 12,966 2036
3/16/2021  Schools 2.00-5.00 3,128 2,924 2036
2/15/2022  General Purpose 3.00-5.00 10,110 10,110 2037
2/15/2022  Schools 3.00-5.00 4,890 4,890 2037
7/8/2021 Pension .32-2.44 324,275 324,275 2047

Total $ 520655 _$ 456,585

Prior Year Defeasance of Debt

In prior years, the Town defeased certain bonds by placing the proceeds of new bonds in an
irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds.
Accordingly, the trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not
included in the Town’s financial statements. At June 30, 2022, $3,730,000 of prior bonds
outstanding is considered defeased and the escrow balance is $3,807,831.
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Leases

The Town leases various real estate for various terms under long-term, noncancelable lease
agreements. The leases expire at various dates through 2028.

Total future minimum lease payments under lease agreements are as follows:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2023 $ 350 $ 54 $ 35 $ 4 $ 46 $ 9
2024 397 44 37 3 48 7
2025 426 32 38 1 50 5
2026 442 20 19 - - -
2027 417 8 - - - -
2028-2032 71 - - - 53
Total $ 2,103 $ 158 $ 129 $ 8 $ 197 $ 23

Right-to use assets acquired through outstanding leases are shown below, by underlying

asset class:
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Office Equipment $ - $ 157 $ 157
Real Estate 2,412 - 2,412
Less: Accumulated Amortization (352) (31) (383)
Total $ 2,060 $ 126 $ 2,186

Note Payable — Direct Borrowing

The Town entered into a finance agreement for various equipment for business-type
activities. The agreement qualifies as a note payable for accounting purposes and
therefore, have been recorded at the present value of the future minimum payments as of
the date of their inception. The Town'’s outstanding note from the direct borrowing contains
a provision that in event of default, the Town return all the equipment at the Town’s
expense.

The following is a schedule of future minimum payments and the present value of the net
minimum payments at June 30, 2022:

Year Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 46 % 9 § 55
2024 48 7 55
2025 50 5 55
2026 53 2 55
Total $ 197§ 23 % 220

(68)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE7 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Sewer indebtedness includes overlapping debt of the Metropolitan District. As a member of
the Metropolitan District (a quasi-municipal corporation that provides water supply and
sewage collection and disposal facilities for members), the Town is contingently liable for
$178,482 or 22.47% of the District's debt.

The Town’s indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by the
Connecticut General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule:

Net
Category Debt Limit Indebtedness Balance
General Purpose $ 602,827 $ 130,008 $ 472,819
Schools 1,205,654 75,000 1,130,654
Sewers 1,004,711 178,482 826,229
Urban Renewal 870,750 - 870,750
Pension Deficit 803,769 324,275 479,494

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts
from taxation or $1.88 billion. Except for proprietary fund bonds, if any, all long-term debt
obligations are retired through General Fund appropriations.

Indebtedness, in accordance with State Statutes, includes long-term debt outstanding, bond
anticipation notes outstanding and the amount of bonds authorized and unissued against
which bonds have been issued to partially finance the project. There were $72,698 of bonds
authorized and unissued, for debt limitation purposes, at June 30, 2022.
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NOTE 8 FUND BALANCE

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds at June 30, 2022 were as

follows:
Capital Debt Nonmajor
General Projects Service Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Total
Fund Balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 31 $ - 8 - 8 7 3 108
Private Cemetery - - - 82 82
Restricted For:
Grants - - - 70 70
Cemetery Operating - - - 1,267 1,267
C.F. Morway - - - 19 19
Town That Cares - - - 449 449
School Donations - - - 134 134
Affordable Housing - - - 4 4
Veteran Memorial - - - 34 34
Committed To:
Parking Lot - - - 158 158
Westmoor Park - - - 391 391
Cafeteria - - - 2,620 2,620
School Special Programs - - - 1,879 1,879
West Hartford Library - - - 95 95
School Interscholastic Sports - - - 69 69
Technology Investment - - - 9 9
Police Private Duty - - - 294 294
Student Activities - - - 1,445 1,445
Police Home Ownership - - - 17 17
Cemetery Operating - - - 265 265
Debt and Sundry - - 4,321 - 4,321
Capital Projects - 947 - - 947
Pension 26,497 - - - 26,497
Assigned To: .
General Government Encumbrances 6 - - - 6
Community Maintenance Encumbrances 137 - - - 137
Human and Cultural Encumbrances 11 - - - 11
Education Encumbrances 163 - - - 163
Public Safety Encumbrances 30 - - - 30
Unassigned 28,753 - - - 28,753
Total Fund Balances $ 55,628 $ 947 $ 4321 _§ 9378 § 70,274
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FUND BALANCE (CONTINUED)

Significant encumbrances at June 30, 2022 were contained in the above table in assigned
fund balance. General Fund encumbrances amounted to $347. Capital Projects
encumbrances amounted to $-0- and Nonmajor Governmental Funds encumbrances
amounted to $77 at June 30, 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT
A. Types of Risk

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
The Town established its Risk Management Fund (an internal service fund) in 1980 to
account for and finance both its insured and self-insured risks of loss. There are six
programs accounted for in the fund: Workers’ Compensation, Heart and Hypertension,
Town Health, Self-Insured, Insured and Board of Education Health. The Town is self-
insured for workers’ compensation, heart and hypertension, general liability, automobile
liability, law enforcement liability, school leaders and public official’s liability, and health
claims. In addition, stop-loss or excess coverage is purchased for each of these
programs.

B. Insurance Coverage

The following is a summary of major coverage:

Coverage Retention Limits
Excess Workers’ Compensation 500 Statutory
General Liability 250 20,000
Law Enforcement Liability 250 20,000
Public Officials Liability 250 20,000
School Leaders Liability 250 20,000
Automobile Liability 250 20,000
Auto Physical Damage-Comprehensive 5 Actual Cash
Value
Property 50 500,000
Excess Liability N/A 15,000

Excess liability insurance is maintained with Gemini for $5,000 excess of $250 self-
insurance retention, with Indemnity Insurance for $10,000 excess of $5,000 and with
American Alternative Insurance for $5,000 excess of $15,000. PMA Management
Corporation of New England administers the Self-Insured Workers’ Compensation and
Self-Insured Risk Programs. Settled claims have not exceeded the commercial
coverages above in any of the previous three years.
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NOTE9 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
C. Loss Estimation Methodology

The Risk Management Fund receives revenues from other funds to finance its costs.
Risk allocations are based on both exposure and experience factors, depending on the
risk. In the case of the self-insured, workers’ compensation and heart and hypertension
programs, actuarial estimates are used to determine ultimate losses. Claims and loss
expenses are accrued at their present value utilizing actuarially developed factors and
discount rates. The discount rate used is 6.25%. The estimate of incurred but not
reported (IBNR) health claims is based on 45 days of average claims for the Town
Health program. Total claims liabilities of $9,968 at June 30, 2022 were based on the
requirements of GASB Statement 10.

This Statement requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the
issuance of the financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been
incurred. At the date of the financial statements, the amount of the loss must be able to
be reasonably estimated.

Changes in the fund’s claims liabilities for the past two years were as follows:

Current Year

Beginning of Claims and End of
Fiscal Fiscal Year Changes in Claim Fiscal Year
Year Liability Estimates Payments Liability
2020-2021 $ 9,178 $ 33,724 $ (33,608) §$ 9,294
2021-2022 9,294 38,392 (37,718) 9,968

The Town and Board of Education employees, except fire union, are fully-insured under
the Connecticut Partnership 2.0 plan, which is administered through the State
Comptroller to Connecticut municipalities. These amounts are recorded in the Town
Health Fund and Board of Education Health Fund.

NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS

Town of West Hartford Retirement System
A. Plan Description and Benefits Provided

By the authority of Chapter VIII, Section 3, of the Town Charter and Chapter 30, Article Il
of the Code of Ordinances, the Town sponsors and maintains a single-employer defined
benefit plan (West Hartford Retirement System). This plan covers all full-time employees
of the Town and Board of Education, except for those employees eligible for participation
in the State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System. The plan does not issue a
stand-alone financial report.

The Plan is administered by a Pension Board that is appointed by the Town Council and
represents both management and employees. The Pension Board consists of 5
members who serve a five-year term.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)
A. Plan Description and Benefits Provided (Continued)

Certified teachers employed by the Board of Education are eligible to participate in the
State of Connecticut Teachers’ Retirement System, which is a cost-sharing
multiemployer defined benefit Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) with the

state acting as a non-employer contributor.

An annual valuation of the pension plan is conducted on July 1 of each year for the

subsequent fiscal year.
Membership in the Plan as of July 1, 2021 was as follows:

Inactive Participants:

Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits 1,245
Terminated Vested Employees 75
Total Inactive Participants 1,320
Active Participants 794
Total 2,114

B. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Plan Asset Matters

Basis of Accounting

Plan financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Employee
and employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period in which employee
services are performed. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in

accordance with the terms of the plan.

Method Used to Value Investments

Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are
valued at the last reported sales price. Investment income is recognized as earned.

C. Funding Policy

The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be amended
by the Town Council subject to union contract negotiation. As a condition of participation,
members are required to contribute a specified portion (1.8% to 7%) of their salary to the

Plan, depending upon their class of membership.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)
C. Funding Policy (Continued)

The Plan’s funding policy provides for actuarially determined periodic contributions at
rates that, for individual employees, increase gradually over time so that sufficient assets
will be available to pay benefits when due. The Plan amortizes the actuarial accrued
liability over a 30-year period. Contributions are recommended by the actuary through
the Town'’s fiscal year-end of June 30. The Town’s contributions for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022 were $322,900 and were in accordance with actuarially determined

requirements.
D. Investments

Investment Policy

The pension plan’s policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established
and may be amended by the Pension Board by a majority vote of its members. It is the
policy of the Pension Board to pursue an investment strategy that reduces risk through
the prudent diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection of distinct asset
classes. The pension plan’s investment policy discourages the use of cash equivalents,
except for liquidity purposes, and aims to refrain from dramatically shifting asset class

allocations over short time spans.

Concentrations

The following investment represents more than 5% of the Pension Trust Funds net

position as of June 30, 2022:

Barings Core Property $ 26,520,454

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension
plan investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was (11.76)%. The money-
weighted rate of return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense,

adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested.

E. Net Pension Liability of the Town

The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2022 were as

follows:

Total Pension Liability $ 608,496

Plan Fiduciary Net Position 489,126
Net Pension Liability $ 119,370

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total Pension Liability 80.38 %
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)
E. Net Pension Liability of the Town (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town’s net pension liability is $119,370, of which
$117,568 is reported as governmental activities and $1,802 as business-type activities.

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021,
rolled forward to June 30, 2021, the measurement date, using the following actuarial
assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Inflation 2.75%

Salary Increases Age-Based

Investment Rate of Return 6.25%

Mortality Pub-2010 Mortality Table with generational projection per

the MP-2019 ultimate scale.
There was no formal actuarial experience study completed.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the
long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by
the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target asset
allocation and the best estimates of arithmetic real rate of return for each major asset
class as of June 30, 2022 were summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Core Fixed Income 30.00 % 1.37 %
U.S. Large and Mid Caps 29.25 5.22
Foreign Developed Equity 17.50 6.27
U.S. Small Caps 14.25 6.58
Private Real Estate Property 5.00 4.62
Emerging Markets Equity 4.00 8.64

Total 100.00 %

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%; Prior:6.99%.
The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan
member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that Town
contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially
determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)

E. Net Pension Liability of the Town (Continued)

Discount Rate (Continued)

Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability. The plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current and active and inactive employees.
Therefore, the discount rate for calculating the total pension liability is equal to the long-
term expected rate of return.

Changes in the Net Pension Liability (Asset)

Increase (Decrease)
Total Pension  Plan Fiduciary  Net Pension

Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances - July 1, 2021 $ 538229 $ 269,713 $ 268,516
Changes for the Year:
Service Cost 7,517 - 7,517
Interest on Total Pension Liability 36,798 - 36,798
Effect of Plan Changes 2 2
Effect of Economic/Demographic
Gains or Losses 19,610 - 19,610
Effect of Assumptions Changes or Inputs 45,627 - 45,627
Benefit Payments (39,287) (39,287) -
Employer Contributions - 322,900 (322,900)
Member Contributions - 3,503 (3,503)
Net Investment Income (Loss) - (67,339) 67,339
Administrative Expenses - (364) 364
Net Changes 70,267 219,413 (149,146)
Balances - June 30, 2022 $ 608496 $ 489126 _$ 119,370

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the current
discount rate, as well as what the Town’s net pension liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage
point higher than the current rate:

One Percent Current One Percent
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
Net Pension Liability $ 191,917 $ 119,370 $ 59,098
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)

F. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to pension from the following sources:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources
Differences Between
Expected and Actual
Experience $ 17,914  $ - % 275  $ - % 18,189 $ -
Changes of Assumptions 41,017 - 629 - 41,646 -
Net Difference Between
Projected and Actual
Earning on Pension
Plan Investments 49,375 - 756 - 50,131 -
Total $ 108,306 $ - $ 1,660 $ - $ 109,966 $ -

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Year Ending June 30, Activities Activities Total
2023 $ 38,552 $ 591 $ 39,143
2024 26,696 409 27,105
2025 24,103 370 24,473
2026 18,955 290 19,245

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense of $53,140, of

which $52,338 is reported as governmental activities and $802 as business-type
activities.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)

F. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

The following schedule presents the net position held in trust for pension benefits at
June 30, 2022 and the changes in net position for the year ended June 30, 2022:

Pension
Trust Fund
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,136
Investments:
Mutual Funds 400,369
Common Stock 36,973
Alternative Investments 49,344
Receivables:
Interest and Dividends 350
Total Assets 489,172
Liabilities:
Accounts and Other Payables 46
Net Position:
Restricted for Pension Benefits $ 489,126
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Town of West Hartford Retirement System (Continued)

F. Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions (Continued)

Pension
Trust Fund
Additions:
Contributions:
Employer $ 322,900
Plan Members 3,503
Total Contributions 326,403
Investment Income:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (74,205)
Interest 52
Dividends 7,399
Total Investment Income (66,754)
Less: Investment Expense (585)
Net Investment Income (67,339)
Total Additions 259,064
Deductions:
Benefits 39,287
Administration 364
Total Deductions 39,651
Change in Net Position 219,413
Net Position - Beginning of Year 269,713
Net Position - End of Year $ 489,126

Connecticut Teachers Retirement System — Pension
A. Plan Description

Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools are provided with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement
System, a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by
the Teachers Retirement Board. Chapter 167a of the state statutes grants authority to
establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers Retirement Board. The Teachers
Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at
www.ct.gov.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Connecticut Teachers Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
B. Benefit Provisions

The plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Employees are eligible to
retire at age 60 with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited

service including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Normal Retirement

Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual salary
times the years of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary

during the 3 years of highest salary).

Early Retirement

Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of
Connecticut service, or age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of

Connecticut service with reduced benefit amounts.

Disability Retirement

Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of
service. Five years of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability
eligibility. Disability benefits are calculated as 2% of average annual salary times
credited service to date of disability, but not less than 15% of average annual salary, nor

more than 50% of average annual salary.

C. Contributions

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z (which reflects Public Act 79-436 as
amended), contribution requirements of active employees and the state of Connecticut
are approved, amended, and certified by the State Teachers Retirement Board and

appropriated by the General Assembly.

Employer (School Districts)
School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan.

The statutes require the state of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts’
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits
earned by employees during the year, with any additional amount to finance any

unfunded accrued liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the amount of “on-behalf’ contributions made by the
state was $23,778 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental

revenues and education expenditures.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Connecticut Teachers Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
C. Contributions (Continued)

Employees

Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension

benefit.

Effective January 1, 2018, the required contribution increased to 7% of pensionable

salary.

D. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and

Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2022, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory
requirement that the state pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net pension liability, the related
state support and the total portion of the net pension liability that was associated with the

Town were as follows:

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability $
State’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability
Associated with the Town

Total _9$

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of June 30, 2020. At June 30, 2022, the Town has no proportionate share of

the net pension liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized pension expense and revenue

of $18,331 in Exhibit II.

E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Salary increase 3.00-6.50%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 6.90%, net of pension plan investment expense,

including inflation
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Connecticut Teachers Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for
males and 103% for females at ages 82 an above), projected generationally with MP-

2019 for the period after service retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019.

Assumption changes since the prior year are as follows:

¢ There were no changes in assumptions that affected the measurement of the TPL

since the prior measurement date.

Benefit changes since the prior year are as follows:

e There were no changes in benefit provisions that affected the measurement of the

TPL since the prior measurement date.

Cost-of-Living Allowance

For teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are
made in accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3%

and a maximum of 5% per annum.

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System before July 1,
2007 and retire on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made
that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the
year granted, with a maximum of 6% per annum. If the return on assets in the previous

year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.5%.

For teachers who were members of the Teachers’ Retirement System after July 1, 2007,
pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social
Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If
the return on assets in the previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is
3%, and if the return on the assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the

maximum increase is 1.0%.

Long-Term Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
using a log-normal distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future
real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and
inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to
produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation.
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NOTE 10 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Connecticut Teachers Retirement System — Pension (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued)

The current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by
the state of Connecticut Treasurer’s Office are summarized in the following table:

Expected Target

Asset Class Return Allocation

Emerging Market Debt Fund 2.70 % 5.00 %
Domestic Equity Fund 5.60 20.00
Developed Market Intl. Stock Fund 6.00 11.00
Emerging Market Intl. Stock Fund 7.90 9.00
Core Fixed Income Fund 2.10 16.00
Inflation Linked Bond Fund 1.10 5.00
High Yield Bond Fund 4.00 6.00
Private Equity 7.30 10.00
Real Estate Fund 4.50 10.00
Alternative Investments 2.90 7.00
Liquidity Fund 0.40 1.00

Total 100.00 %

F. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member
contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that State contributions will
be made at the actuarially determined contribution rates in the future years. Based on
those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was
applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension
liability.

G. Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability is $-0- and, therefore, the
change in the discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the state of
Connecticut.

H. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position
Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of

the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has
no obligation to contribute to the plan.
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NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

OPEB Trust Fund
A. Plan Description

The Town, in a single-employer plan in accordance with various collective bargaining
agreements, provides retiree medical benefits for the lifetime of the retired member and
covered dependents. The plan covers Town, Board of Education, Police and Fire
employees as further defined in collective bargaining agreements and other written
materials. Eligibility and premium sharing information is detailed in the various collective
bargaining agreements. The plan does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

Management of the other postemployment benefits (OPEB) plan is vested with the Town
Manager and Director of Financial Services. The members of the Risk Management
Advisory Board constitute the Other Postemployment Benefits Advisory Board (OPEB
Board), which provides policy oversight. The OPEB Board consists of six members,
three appointed by the Town Council and three appointed by the Board of Education,
who serve a three-year term.

At July 1, 2021, plan membership consisted of the following:

Number of Members:

Active Members 1,531
Retired Members and Beneficiaries 1342
Total Participants 2,873

B. Funding Policy

The Town has actuarially calculated and funded retiree health benefits in a reserve fund
since 1985. All retiree claims are paid for in the reserve fund and funded from a
combination of employee contributions, investment income on the reserve balance,
revenue from the Medicare subsidy and an annual appropriation from the General Fund.
The Health Reserve portion of the Risk Management Fund had net position of $18,190
on June 30, 2022. State law allows the fund to invest up to a maximum of 50% in equity
securities and the assumed rate of return is 6.25%.

The Town has established a trust fund to irrevocably segregate assets to fund the
liability associated with the postemployment benefits, which requires the reporting of a
trust fund in accordance with GASB guidelines. The contribution requirements of plan
members and the Town are negotiated with the various unions representing the
employees. Other postemployment benefits for Town and Board of Education
employees hired subsequent to an increase in the normal retirement age (July 2003 and
forward with varying dates depending on union affiliation) are accounted for in the OPEB
Trust Fund.

(84)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)
B. Funding Policy (Continued)

The Town also began to fund pre-plan change OPEB liabilities in the Trust Fund in fiscal
year 2015 and is phasing in the Annual Required Contribution. Retired plan members
and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits are required to contribute specified
amounts monthly towards the cost of health insurance premiums as follows:

Town Employees

Date of hire prior to July 1, 1986 who receive either an early or normal retirement
pension benefit: Town pays 100% of premium;

Date of hire after July 1, 1986 and prior to November 10, 1997 who receive a normal
retirement pension benefit: Town pays 93% of the premium until Medicare eligibility, then
Town pays 100%;

Date of hire after November 10, 1997 and prior to June 30, 2003 who receive a normal
retirement pension benefit with eligibility at age 55 and 25 years of service: Town pays
85% of the premium until Medicare eligibility, then Town pays 100%;

Date of hire after November 10, 1997 and prior to June 30, 2003 who receive a normal
retirement pension benefit with eligibility at age 60 and 10 years of service: Town pays
70% of the premium until Medicare eligibility, then Town pays 100%;

Date of hire after July 1, 2003 (July 1, 2007 for dispatchers union) who receive a normal
retirement pension benefit with eligibility at age 65 with 15 years of service or age 62
with 35 years of service: Town pays 75% of the premium for employee and 50% of the
premium for dependent until Medicare eligibility, then Town pays 100%.

Board of Education

Teachers and Administrators: Employee pays 100% of the premium for employee and
dependent;

Secretarial/Clerical and Nonbargaining: Board pays 100% of the premium for employee
and 50% of the premium for dependent;

Custodial and Maintenance: Pre-65, Board pays 100% of the premium for employee and
50% of the premium for dependent; Post-65, the employee pays 100% of the Major
Medical premium for both employee and dependent. The Board pays 100% of the
premium for the employee and 50% of the premium for dependent for the Over 65
portion;

Nurses: Board pays 50% of the premium for employee and dependent.
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)

B. Funding Policy (Continued)

Police and Fire

Date of hire prior to July 1, 1986:

10-15 years of service: Town pays greater of rate in effect on July 1 after
retirement or 50% of the premium;

15-20 years of service: Town pays greater of rate in effect on July 1 after
retirement or 75% of the premium;

20+ years of service: Town pays 100% of the premium.

Fire employees with date of hire on or after July 1, 1986 and prior to July 1, 2005:

Less than 20 years of service: no coverage;
20+ years of service: Town pays 100% of the premium.

Fire employees with date of hire on or after July 1, 2005:

Less than 25 years of service: no coverage;
25+ years of service and age 50: Town pays 100% of the premium.

Police employees with date of hire on or after to July 1, 1986 and prior to July 1, 2006:

Less than 20 years of service: no coverage,;
20+ years of service: Town pays 100% of the premium.

Police employees with date of hire on or after July 1, 2006:

Less than 25 years of service: no coverage;
25+ years of service: Town pays 100% of the premium.

Member Contributions

Effective October 2, 2000, active Police employees pay 1% of bi-weekly base wage
toward the cost of retiree health benefits;

Effective July 15, 2002, active Fire employees pay 1% of bi-weekly base wage
toward the cost of retiree health benefits;

Effective July 1, 2005, active Police and Fire employees pay 1.65% of bi-weekly
base wage toward the cost of retiree health benefits.
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)

C.

Investments

Investment Policy

The investment policy of the OPEB Plan is established and may be amended by the
OPEB Board. The investment policy is designed to reflect a prudent investor’s tolerance
for risk, which is achieved through diversification of the portfolio across a broad selection
of asset classes. It is the intent of the policy to pursue an investment strategy that
produces a maximum return for the Town through prudent asset allocation and superior
investment performance within designated asset classes.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the annual money-weighted rate of return on
investments, net of investment expense, was (8.02)%. The money-weighted rate of
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the
changing amounts actually invested.

Net OPEB Liability of the Town

The Town’s net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2022. The components of
the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Total OPEB Liability $ 245,501
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 14,617
Net OPEB Liability $ 230,884

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage
of the Total OPEB Liability 5.95%

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town’s net OPEB liability is $230,884, of which
$227,582 is reported as governmental activities and $3,302 as business-type activities.
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)
E. Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2021,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation 2.75%
Salary Increase Varies
Investment Rate of Return 6.25%; Prior: 6.99%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  Pre-65: 5.30% - 4.10% over 55 years; Post-65: 5.20% - 4.10%
over 52 years

Prior: Pre-65: 6.20% - 4.10% over 55 years; Post-65: 6.00% -
4.10% over 55 years

Mortality Certified BOE: For healthy retirees and beneficiaries, the PubT-
2010 Mortality Tables for Employees and Heallthy Annuitants
with generational projection of future improvements per MP-
2019 Ultimate scale.

Prior: RPH-2014 White Collar table with employee and
annuitant rates blended from ages 50 to 80 projected to the
year 2020 using the BB improvement scale and further
adjusted to grade in increases to rates over age 80.

All others: Pub-2010 Mortality Table with generational
projection per the MP ultimate scale, with employee rates
before commencement and healthy annuitant rates after
benefit commencement.

There was no formal actuarial experience study completed.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using
a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected returns, net of investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected
rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset
allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation and best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset as of June 30, 2022
were summarized in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

U.S. Core Fixed Income 40.00 % 1.37 %
U.S. Large Cap Equity 28.50 5.15
Foreign Developed Equity 19.00 6.27
U.S. Small Cap Equity 7.50 6.58
Emerging Markets Equity 5.00 8.64

Total 100.00 %
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)
F. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.25%; Prior: 6.99%. The
projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town
contributions will be made at rates equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members.
Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

G. Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Increase (Decrease)

Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (a)-(b)
Balances - July 1, 2021 $ 226,944 $ 13,487 $ 213,457
Changes for the Year:
Service Cost 2,683 - 2,683
Interest on Total Pension Liability 15,534 - 15,534
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience (1,920) - (1,920)
Effect of Assumptions
Changes or Inputs 17,320 - 17,320
Benefit Payments (15,060) (15,060) -
Employer Contributions - 17,178 (17,178)
Member Contributions - 112 (112)
Net Investment Income (Loss) - (1,100) 1,100
Net Changes 18,557 1,130 17,427
Balances - June 30, 2022 $ 245501 $ 14,617 $ 230,884

H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one
percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current discount rate:

One Percent Current One Percent
Decrease Discount Rate Increase
(5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
Net OPEB Liability $ 261,330 $ 230,884 $ 205,785
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend
Rates

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town’s
net OPEB liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are
one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher than the current healthcare
cost trend rates:

One Percent Healthcare Cost One Percent
Decrease Trend Rates Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 203,342 $ 230,884 $ 264,591

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows
of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of

Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources Resources

Differences Between

Expected and Actual

Experience $ 864 $ 1,622 % 13 % 24 $ 877 % 1,646
Changes of Assumptions 37,667 2,341 546 34 38,213 2,375
Net Difference Between

Projected and Actual

Earning on OPEB

Plan Investments 1,294 - 19 - 1,313 -

Total $§ 39825 § 3963 § 578 _$ 58 $ 40,403 % 4,021

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Year Ending June 30, Activities Activities Total
2023 $ 7,959 $ 115 $ 8,074
2024 7,942 115 8,057
2025 7,902 115 8,017
2026 8,060 117 8,177
2027 1,829 27 1,856
Thereafter 2,170 31 2,201

(90)



TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of $26,924, of
which $26,539 was reported as governmental activities and $385 as business-type

activities.
OPEB
Trust Fund
Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 8,629
Investments:
Mutual Funds 5,960
Receivables:
Accounts and Other Receivables 28
Total Assets 14,617
Net Position:

Restricted for OPEB Benefits $ 14,617
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OPEB Trust Fund (Continued)

J. OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to OPEB (Continued)

OPEB
Trust Fund
Additions:

Contributions:

Employer $ 17,178
Plan Members 112
Total Contributions 17,290
Investment Income:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (1,221)
Interest 16
Dividends 105
Total Investment Income (1,100)
Less: Investment Expense -
Net Investment Income (1,100)
Total Additions 16,190
Deductions:

Benefits 15,060
Change in Net Position 1,130
Net Position - Beginning of Year 13,487
Net Position - End of Year $ 14,617

Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan
A. Plan Description

Teachers, principals, superintendents, or supervisors engaged in service of public
schools plus professional employees at State Schools of higher education are eligible to
participate in the Connecticut State Teachers’ Retirement System Retiree Health
Insurance Plan (TRS-RHIP), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other
postemployment benefit plan administered by the Teachers’ Retirement Board (TRB), if
they choose to be covered.

Chapter 167a of the state statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit

terms to the TRB. TRS-RHIP issues a publicly available financial report that can be
obtained at www.ct.gov/trb.
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Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan
(Continued)

B. Benefit Provisions (Not Rounded)

There are two types of the health care benefits offered through the system. Subsidized
Local School District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving
coverage through their former employer and the CTRB Sponsored Medicare
Supplement Plans provide coverage for those participating in Medicare but not receiving
Subsidized Local School District Coverage.

Any member who is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to
continue health care coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per
month for a retired member plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a
local school district plan is provided to the school district to first offset the retiree’s share
of the cost of coverage, and any remaining portion is used to offset the district’'s cost.
The subsidy amount is set by statute and has not increased since July 1996. A subsidy
amount of $220 per month may be paid for a retired member, spouse or the surviving
spouse of a member who has attained the normal retirement age to participate in
Medicare, is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost and contributes at least $220
per month towards coverage under a local school district plan.

Any member who is currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to either
continue health care coverage with their former employer, if offered, or enroll in the plan
sponsored by the System. If they elect to remain in the plan with their former employer,
the same subsidies as above will be paid to offset the cost of coverage.

If a member participating in Medicare Parts A & B so elects, they may enroll in one of the
CTRB Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans. Effective July 1, 2018, the System
added a Medicare Advantage Plan option. Active members, retirees and the state pay
equally toward the cost of the basic coverage (medical and prescription drug benefits)
under the Medicare Advantage Plan. Retired members who choose to enroll in the
Medicare Supplement Plan are responsible for the full difference in the premium cost
between the two plans. Additionally, effective July 1, 2018, retired members who cancel
their health care coverage or elect to not enroll in a CTRB sponsored health care
coverage option must wait two years to re-enroll.

Survivor Health Care Coverage

Survivors of former employees or retirees remain eligible to participate in the plan and
continue to be eligible to receive either the $110 monthly subsidy or participate in the
TRB-Sponsored Medicare Supplement or Medicare Advantage Plan options, as long as
they do not remarry.
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Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan

(Continued)
C. Eligibility

Any member who is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit is eligible to
participate in the plan.

Credited Service

One month for each month of service as a teacher in Connecticut public schools,
maximum 10 months for each school year. Ten months of credited service constitutes
one year of Credited Service. Certain other types of teaching services, State
employment, or wartime military service may be purchased prior to retirement if the
member pays one-half the cost.

Normal Retirement

Age 60 with 20 years of Credited Service in Connecticut, or 35 years of Credited Service
including at least 25 years of service in Connecticut.

Early Retirement

Age 55 with 20 years of Credited Service including 15 years of Connecticut service, or
25 years of Credited Service including 20 years of Connecticut service.

Proratable Retirement
Age 60 with 10 years of Credited Service.

Disability Retirement

No service requirement if incurred in the performance of duty, and 5 years of Credited
Service in Connecticut if not incurred in the performance of duty.

Termination of Employment
Ten or more years of Credited Service.

D. Contributions (Not Rounded)

State of Connecticut

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-183z, contribution requirements of active
employees and the state of Connecticut are approved, amended, and certified by the
State Teachers’ Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The state
appropriates from the General Fund one third of the annual costs of the Plan.
Administrative costs of the Plan are financed by the state. Based upon Chapter 167a,
Subsection D of Section 10-183t of the Connecticut statutes, it is assumed the state will
pay for any long-term shortfall arising from insufficient active member contributions.
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Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan

(Continued)
D. Contributions (Not Rounded) (Continued)

Employer (School Districts)
School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the amount of “on-behalf’ contributions made by the
state was $560 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental revenues
and education expenditures.

Employees/Retirees

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows:
active teachers’ pay for one-third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of
their pensionable salaries, and retired teachers pay for one-third of the Plan costs
through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the cost of health insurance for eligible
retired members and dependents.

E. OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and
Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net
OPEB liability, and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory
requirement that the state pay 100% of the required contribution. The amount
recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, the related
State support and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the
Town was as follows:

Town’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability $ -
State’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability

Associated with the Town 30,938

Total $ 30,938

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as
June 30, 2020. At June 30, 2022, the Town had no proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of
$(1,142) in Exhibit 11.
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Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan

(Continued)

F. Actuarial Assumptions

The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020,
using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Health care costs trend rate 5.125% for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate rate
of 4.50% by 2023

Salary increases 3.00-6.50%, including inflation

Investment rate of return 2.17%, net of OPEB plan investment expense,

including inflation
Year fund net position will
be depleted 2023

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for
males and 103% for females at ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-
2019 for the period after service retirement.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2019.

The changes in the assumptions since the prior year are as follows:
e Discount rate changed from 2.21% to 2.17%
e Expected annual per capita claims costs were updated to better reflect
anticipated Medicare and prescription drug claim experience based on scheduled
premium increases through calendar year 2024.

The changes in the benefit terms since the prior year are as follows:

e There were no changes to benefit terms in the two years preceding the
measurement date.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

NOTE 11 OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan
(Continued)

F. Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the GASB 75
valuation process. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of
return assumption, including the plan’s current asset allocations and a log-normal
distribution analysis using the best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of
return (expected return, net investment expense and inflation) for each major asset
class. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then adding
expected inflation. The assumption is not expected to change absent a significant
change in the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental
change in the market that alters expected returns in future years. The plan is 100%
invested in U.S. Treasuries (Cash Equivalents) for which the expected 10-Year
Geometric Real Rate of Return is (0.42%).

G. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 2.17%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate was performed in accordance with GASB
75. The projection was based on an actuarial valuation performed as of June 30, 2020

In addition to the actuarial methods and assumptions of the June 30, 2020, actuarial
valuation, the following actuarial methods and assumptions were used in the projection
of cash flows:

o Total payroll for the initial projection year consists of the payroll of the
active membership present on the valuation date. In subsequent
projection years, total payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate
of 3.00%

o Employee contributions were assumed to be made at the current member
contribution rate. Employee contributions for future plan members were
used to reduce the estimated amount of total service costs for future plan
members.

o Annual State contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent
five-year average of state contributions toward the fund.

Based on those assumptions, the Plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be

depleted in 2023 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the
determination of the single equivalent rate.

(97)



NOTE 11

NOTE 12

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Other Postemployment Benefit — Connecticut State Teachers Retirement Plan

(Continued)
H. Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend
Rate and the Discount Rate

The Town’s proportionate share of the net OPEB liability is $-0- and, therefore, the
change in the health care cost trend rate or the discount rate would only impact the
amount recorded by the state of Connecticut.

I. OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Connecticut State Teachers OPEB Plan fiduciary net
position is available in the separately issued State of Connecticut Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report at www.ct.gov.

J. Other information

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of
the financial statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has
no obligation to contribute to the plan.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The West Hartford-Bloomfield Health District is a regional health department servicing the
towns of West Hartford and Bloomfield. The Town of West Hartford expends at least $1.00
per capita per fiscal year from annual local tax receipts for the district’s services.

The Metropolitan District Commission (the Commission) provides water and sewer services
to the Town and certain other area municipalities financed by a service levy on the
participating municipalities and user charges. This does not result in overlapping property
tax for the residents of the Town. Since this is a separate governmental unit, its audited
annual statements are not included in this report but are available from the Commission
directly.

The Town, its officers, employees, boards and commissions are defendants in a number of
lawsuits. It is the opinion of Town officials that such pending litigation will not be finally
determined so as to result individually or in the aggregate in a final judgment against the
Town that would materially adversely affect its financial position.
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RSI-1
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Property Taxes:
Current Year Levy $ 266,811  $ 268,111  § 267,938 $ (173)
Prior Year’s Collections 1,425 1,425 759 (666)
Motor Vehicle Supplement 2,425 2,725 3,032 307
Interest and Liens Fees 590 790 995 205
Suspense - - 79 79
Total Property Taxes 271,251 273,051 272,803 (248)
Intergovernmental Revenues:
Federal:
FEMA - 350 552 202
Federal ARPA 4,135 4,135 4,163 28
Police Grants - 31 90 59
Dial-A-Ride Grant 85 85 209 124
Total Federal Assistance 4,220 4,601 5,014 413
State:
Education Cost Sharing 22,246 22,246 22,431 185
Payments In Lieu of Taxes 1,568 1,568 1,165 (403)
Municipal Revenue Sharing 806 866 1,217 351
Disabled Tax Relief 6 6 5 1)
Veterans Exemptions 63 63 47 (16)
Alcohol/Drug Abuse Grant 7 12 13 1
Highway Town Aid 687 687 688 1
Mashantucket Pequot Fund 28 28 28 -
Miscellaneous State Grants - 36 132 96
Emergency 911 Grant 141 141 226 85
Telephone Grant 115 115 101 (14)
Total State Assistance 25,667 25,768 26,053 285
Total Intergovernmental Revenues 29,887 30,369 31,067 698
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RSI-1
(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Charges for Services:
Town Clerk / Town Council $ 1,563 $ 2,082 $ 2,278 $ 196
Financial Services 1 1 1 -
Assessment 1 1 2 1
Fire Department 1,165 1,165 1,032 (133)
Police Department 280 280 257 (23)
Community Development 1,724 2,324 2,509 185
Public Works 185 185 259 74
Human & Leisure Services 591 591 767 176
Library 15 15 20 5
Total Charges for Services 5,525 6,644 7,125 481
Miscellaneous Local Revenues:
Workers' Compensation Reimbursements 360 360 575 215
Rental of Facilities 314 314 233 (81)
Miscellaneous 151 151 73 (78)
Total Miscellaneous Local Revenues 825 825 881 56
Income on Investments 430 430 209 (221)
Total Revenues 307,918 311,319 312,085 766
Other Financing Sources:
Transfers In 526 526 508 (18)
Total $ 308,444 3% 311,845 312,593 _§ 748
Budgetary revenues are different than GAAP revenues because:
On-behalf contributions to the Connecticut State
Teachers’ Retirement System for Town teachers are not budgeted:
Pension 23,778
OPEB 560

The Board of Education does not budget for intergovernmental
grants, which are credited against education
expenditures for budgetary reporting. These amounts are recorded as

revenues and expenditures for GAAP financial statement purposes. 4,640
Bonds issued not budgeted for 324,275
Revenues not budgeted for (348)
Transfers not budgeted for 1,457

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources as Reported on
the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes

(101)



RSI-2
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
General Government:
Town Clerk:
Personal Services $ 189 § 223 $ 223 $ -
Nonpersonal Expense 77 123 123 -
Debt and Sundry 13 14 14 -
Total 279 360 360 -
Town Council:
Personal Services 133 134 134 -
Nonpersonal Expense 258 261 261 -
Debt and Sundry 10 9 9 -
Total 401 404 404 -
Town Manager:
Personal Services 549 549 543 6
Nonpersonal Expense 25 25 18 7
Debt and Sundry 37 37 35 2
Total 611 611 596 15
Corporation Counsel:
Personal Services 335 324 323 1
Nonpersonal Expense 105 116 116 -
Debt and Sundry 27 27 23 4
Total 467 467 462 5
Registrar of Voters:
Personal Services 186 186 132 54
Nonpersonal Expense 58 58 26 32
Debt and Sundry 11 6 5 1
Total 255 250 163 87
Information Technology:
Personal Services 536 556 556 -
Nonpersonal Expense 544 636 636 -
Debt and Sundry 38 38 38 -
Total 1,118 1,230 1,230 -
Financial Services:
Personal Services 1,633 1,749 1,749 -
Nonpersonal Expense 605 554 554 -
Debt and Sundry 121 116 116 -
Total 2,359 2,419 2,419 -
Assessment:
Personal Services 648 648 641 7
Nonpersonal Expense 71 71 65 6
Debt and Sundry 49 49 46 3
Total 768 768 752 16
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RSI-2
(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Human Resources:
Personal Services $ 353 § 383 $ 383 $ -
Nonpersonal Expense 108 123 123 -
Debt and Sundry 25 25 25 -
Total 486 531 531 -
Total General Government 6,744 7,040 6,917 123
Public Safety:
Fire Department:
Personal Services 11,611 12,698 12,698 -
Nonpersonal Expense 1,453 1,497 1,497 -
Debt and Sundry 190 188 188 -
Total 13,254 14,383 14,383 -
Police Department:
Personal Services 15,569 16,456 16,456 -
Nonpersonal Expense 1,056 1,205 1,205 -
Debt and Sundry 345 346 346 -
Total 16,970 18,007 18,007 -
Total Public Safety 30,224 32,390 32,390 -
Community Maintenance:
Community Development:
Personal Services 1,871 2,141 2,141 -
Nonpersonal Expense 274 265 265 -
Debt and Sundry 140 142 142 -
Total 2,285 2,548 2,548 -
Public Works:
Personal Services 4,334 4,187 4,187 -
Nonpersonal Expense 7,617 7,005 6,997 8
Debt and Sundry 317 281 281 -
Total 12,268 11,473 11,465 8
Plant and Facility Services:
Personal Services 1,188 1,169 1,169 -
Nonpersonal Expense 973 1,041 1,041 -
Debt and Sundry 89 81 81 -
Total 2,250 2,291 2,291 -
Total Community Maintenance 16,803 16,312 16,304 8
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RSI-2
(CONTINUED)
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (CONTINUED)

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Budgeted Amounts Variance -
Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)
Leisure and Social Services:
Library:
Personal Services $ 2379 $ 2364 $ 2,364 $ -
Nonpersonal Expense 653 633 633 -
Debt and Sundry 179 155 155 -
Total 3,211 3,152 3,152 -
Human and Cultural:
Personal Services 2,002 2,049 2,049 -
Nonpersonal Expense 1,198 1,337 1,337 -
Debt and Sundry 103 108 108 -
Total 3,303 3,494 3,494 -
Total Human and Cultural 6,514 6,646 6,646 -
Education 175,556 175,556 175,499 57
Debt and Sundry 55,176 54,447 54,047 400
Total Expenditures 291,017 292,391 291,803 588
Other Financing Uses:
Transfers Out 17,427 19,454 19,499 (45)
Total $ 308,444 $ 311,845 311,302 _§ 543

Budgetary expenditures are different than GAAP expenditures because:

State of Connecticut on-behalf payments to the Connecticut State Teachers’

Retirement System for Town teachers are not budgeted:
Pension 23,778
OPEB 560

The Board of Education does not budget for intergovernmental
grants, which are credited against education expenditures for budgetary reporting. These amounts 4,640

Encumbrances for purchases and commitments ordered but not

received are reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but in the year receive 834
Board of Education does not budget amounts appropriated from prior year budgets for subsequent 750
Bond costs not budgeted 1,375
Bond issuance activity to pension fund not budgeted 322,900
Activity not budgeted for in the general fund (25,429)
Inventory purchases are reported as expenditures for budgetary purposes. (33)

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses as Reported on the Statement
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RSI-7
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFIT TRUST FUND

LAST SIX FISCAL YEARS*
(IN THOUSANDS)

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost $ 2242 $ 2321 $ 2903 § 2,649 § 3,206 $ 2,683
Interest 11,278 11,557 12,439 12,755 15,312 15,534
Change of Benefit Terms - 70 - - - -
Differences Between Expected
and Actual Experience 2,300 2,694 915 653 - (1,920)
Changes of Assumptions - 16,278 (4,314) 40,893 - 17,320
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Member Contributions (11,141) (10,944) (10,845) (14,123) (14,623) (15,060)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 4,679 21,976 1,098 42,827 3,895 18,557
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 152,469 157,148 179,124 180,222 223,049 226,944
Total OPEB Liability - Ending 157,148 179,124 180,222 223,049 226,944 245,501
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 12,019 12,208 12,551 16,099 16,741 17,178
Contributions - Member 99 100 118 117 124 112
Contributions - TRB Subsidy 378 358 294 - - -
Net Investment Income 166 79 324 395 1,557 (1,100)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Member Contributions (11,141) (10,944) (10,845) (14,123) (14,623) (15,060)
Administrative Expense - - - (2) (2) -
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,521 1,801 2,442 2,486 3,797 1,130
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 1,440 2,961 4,762 7,204 9,690 13,487
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending 2,961 4,762 7,204 9,690 13,487 14,617
Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 154187 _$ 174362 _$ 173,018 _$ 213359 _$ 213457 _$ 230,884
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of
the Total OPEB Liability 1.88 % 2.66 % 4.00 % 4.34 % 5.94 % 5.95 %
Covered Payroll $ 113,393 $ 120515 $ 124,733 $ 109,142 $ 109,142 $ 118,801
Net OPEB Liability as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 135.98 % 144.68 % 138.71 % 195.49 % 195.58 % 194.35 %
Notes to Schedule
Assumption:
Investment Rate of Return: 6.25%; Prior: 6.99%
Inflation: 2.75%
Healthcare Cost Trend Rates: Pre-65: 5.30% - 4.10% over 55 years; Post-65: 5.20% - 4.10% over 52 years
Prior: Pre-65: 6.20% - 4.10% over 55 years; Post-65: 6.00% - 4.10% over 55 years
Mortality:

Certified BOE: For healthy retirees and beneficiaries, the PubT-2010 Mortality Tables for
Employees and Heallthy Annuitants with generational projection of future improvements per
MP-2019 Ultimate scale.

Prior: RPH-2014 White Collar table with employee and annuitant rates blended from ages 50
to 80 projected to the year 2020 using the BB improvement scale and further adjusted to
grade in increases to rates over age 80.

(109)



8-1Sy

(or1)

JUSWIBOUSWWOD }1JBUSq Jaye Sajel Juejinuue Ayjjeay pue
JUSWBdUBWIWOD 310}aq sajel 9dAojdwa yum ‘ajeas ajewnin 4N 8y Jad uonosfoid jeuonelsausb yum ajqe Aljeudol 01.0Z-qnd :S18y1o IV
*9|eos ayewlin 610Z-dN 4ad syuswasoidwi aininy jo uonoafoid jeuonelsusb
ysm sjuepnuuy AyylesH pue seakojdw3 Joj sajqe ] AlleHo 010Z-1ANd 8y ‘selieoysuag pue saaliel Ayjesy Jo4 1309 PayIHeD
salen
%SC'9
%08S°€
S1eah GG JSA0 %01 ¥ 0} %0.'G Ueld diysiauned sjels
sJ1eak GG JOA0 %011 - %00'9 :G9-1S0d ‘SIBSA GG I8N0 %0 L ¥ - %029 :G9-91d
%S.'C
anjeA 19y.e
paso|) ‘sieaA €2
JjoJAed jo abejusaiad |ana]
JewloN aby Anu3

a|qE|IeA. 10U - /N

:Anjepon

:aby Juswauney

1UINI9Y JO 9)EY JUBWISAAU|
:sasealou| Alejes

'sajey puai] 1809 aleoyiesH
:uoneu|

:POYIBIN uonEN|BA 18SSY

:polad uoneziuowy Buluiewsy
:POYIOIN UOHEZILOWY

‘POUIBIN 180D [eleNnOY
:s91ey UONNGLIUOY BulWwIsle(

0} pas suoipdwnssy pue spoylsi

"papodas a1e SUORNQIUOD YDIYM Ul JesA [BISY 8Y} JO pud 8y} 0} Joud sieak om) ‘0g aunr Jo se paje|nojed ale Ssjel UORNQLIUOD paulwisiap Ajjeuenioy

120z ‘0€ aunp
120z ‘L Ainp

:9)e( Juswainses|y
:a]eg uonenep

3[NPaydS O} SOJON

G "ON gSVO Ulm 8ouepi0dde Ul paje|ndled (O¥yYy) uonnguiuo) palinbay |enuuy ayj uo paseq si /1L0Z ‘0E aunf papus JeaA |easy 0} Joud suonnguuo) paulwislaq Ajleuenoy (L

% v’ vl % ve'SL % GL'YvL % 90°01 % €10k % 09°0L % L8'6 % 00’8 V/N VIN
L08'gLL ¢ <zvi'e0L $ zvi'60L § €€l § Glg'ock § eee'cll § 89G'60L §  €68'SOL § V/N VIN
(26) $ @) § (e9z) § ¥0L't $ I8 § (8¢ $ scey $ L0€1T $ 60t $ G2l $
8LLLL L.l 66091 1GGCL 80Z°zl 6L0°CL €180 €LV'8 069°2 18€L

980'/L ¢ 69991 ¢ 9e8'vL ¢ GsZ'yL ¢ 689CL ¢ 186'LL § LGZ'LL ¢ o08L6 ¢ 6668 ¢ 9058 ¢

(444 (X474 0c0c 61.0¢C 810¢ L10¢ 910¢ Sloe yi0c €l0c

(SANVSNOHL NI)
SUVIA TVISId N3IL 1SV
aNN4d 1SNYL S1143IN3Ig LNJINAOTdINTLSOd ¥3HLO
SNOILNGIYLNOD ¥3AOTdINT 40 ITNAIHIS
LNIILOANNOD ‘Q¥O41¥VH 1S3IM 40 NMOL

lloJAed paiano) jo
abejuaolad e se suonnguuo)

J|oJAed patano)
(ss@9x3) Aousiole@ uonngUuoD

uonNgUIUOY paulwLIsleq
Ajjeuenioy ay) 0} UONE[SY Ul SUOIINGLIUOD
(1) uonnguyuoy pauiuLsleq Ajjeuenioy



(Lei)

a|ge|ieAe awooaq Asy) se pake|dsip aq ||IM SIeaAk [eUOIIPPE - SIeaA (| Jo} UOjeuw.Iojul MOYS 0} papusiul sI 8|npayos ,

%(20°8) %LLGL %ZE'S %EL9 %E9°C %6LLL asuadx3g JuswisaAul JO 18N ‘uinjay Jo aley pajybiapn-Asuopy [enuuy

¢c0¢ 12c0¢ 0c0c 610¢ 8L0¢ L10¢

*SUVIA TVISId XIS LSV
aNNd 1LSNYL S1143IN39 LNJIWAOTdIN3LSOd d3HLO
SNANL3Y LNJWLSIANI 40 3TNATHOS

LNJILOIANNOD ‘QHO4L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL
6-Isy



(L)

‘a)ep Buiuodau s ahojdwas ay) uey) JallJes Jeak auo S| sjep Juswainseaw ay] -
‘9|ge|leAB SBw093q } Se pake|dsip a9 ||IM UOIEW.IOJUI SJESA [BUOIIPPY "SIESA US) IO} UOIEWLIOJUI MOYS O} POPUSIUI S| 8|NPaYDSs SIY] -

%S.LC

uolne|ul 8oud Buipnjoul asuadxas paje|al JUSWISSAUI JO }8U ‘%00°E
S}osse JO an|en JaxyJel

sieak ¢

pouad uado ue Jano |joJAed Jo usaiad [aAa]

aby Anug

20z Jedk Jepus|ed ybnouy) sasealoul wniwaid pajnpayds uo

paseq aouauadxa wiejd Bnip uonduosald pue |esipaw pajedionue Josjal J8)aq 0} pajepdn alam sisod swielo eyded Jad |enuue pajoadxy
{1202 ‘0€ aunr jo se ajey xapu| puog [edioiunjy 8y |enba o} pajepdn sem |LZoz ‘0g dunr 0

se sasodind Buunodoe |eroueul 1oy suoebiqo uejd ainseaw 0} pasn el JUNOISIP Y} ‘G/ gSVO Ul paquasap ainpadold ay} uo paseq

:S9J0N

:uoneju| 8oud
:UIN}aY JO a1BY JUSBLL]ISOAU|
:POYIBI\ uonen|eA }essy
‘pouad uoneziuowy Buluiewsy
‘POYIS|\ uoneZIIoWwY

‘POUIBIN 1500 |euEeNnjOyY

:suondwnssy jo sebuey)n

QuoN 'swla] euag ul sebueyn

3[NPaydS 0} S3JON

% 119 % 052 % 80°C % 6¥°L % 6.1 Aunger1 9340 [e101 8y jo abejusdlad e se uolisod 19N Aseronpi ueid

o - o - o - o - o - lloiAed paiano) sy jo abejuadlad e se AJjiger] g3d0 19N du} Jo aieys ajeuonodold s,umo |

955'G8 $ 182'C8 $ 1.2'18 $ z9L'6L $ 0292 $ lloiAed paiaA0D s,umoL
8€6°0€ $  Lv'ES $ 8626V $ veLey $ O0LL'v9 $ [eol

8€6°0€ LLY'€S 86261 vZL'8y 0LL‘'Y9 UMO | B} yym pajeroossy Ajligel] 9340 19N U3 Jo aleys ajeuoipodold s slels

- ¢ - ¢ - $ - ¢ - $ Auniger] @340 19N sy} Jo aieys sjeuoiiodoid S,umoL

% - % - % - % - % - Ajliger 9340 18N 8y} jo uoiodoid s,umo

2eoe Lcoe 0202 6102 8102

0L-1Sy

(SANVSNOHL NI)
«SHUVIA TVISId IAId LSV
NV1d LNIJNIHILTY SHIHOVIL

ALITIEGVIT 8340 13N 3H1 40 JUVHS 31VNOILIOdO¥d SINMOL 3H1 40 3TNA3HOS

LNJILOIANNOD ‘QHO4L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL



COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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GENERAL FUND

The General Fund is used to account for resources traditionally associated with government that are
not required legally or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special Revenue Funds are created in the Town of West Hartford pursuant to State Statutes or local
ordinances and resolutions. The criteria for the creation of a Special Revenue Fund are generally the
desire or need to conspicuously segregate revenues, which are to be utilized for special and specific

purposes, or expenditures incurred for the performance of specific activities, or both.

Fund

Funding Source

Function

Community Development Block Grant

Federal grant — DHUD

Community development
programs

State Housing and Community

Program income

Community development

Development program

Parking Lot Charges for services West Hartford Center off-street
parking

Drug Enforcement State and federal grants Drug enforcement and
education

Westmoor Park

External trust and charges for
services

Park maintenance and
environmental education

Cafeteria

Sales of food, state, and federal
subsidies

Operation of the school
cafeterias

Private School Services

State grant and General Fund

Transportation and health
services

School Grants

State and federal grants

Education programs

School Special Programs

Charges for services, state, and
federal grants

Education special programs

West Hartford Library

State, Hartford Foundation for
Public Giving and charges for
services

Library activities

School Interscholastic Sports

Charges for services

Educational programs

Technology Investment

Parking ticket and ordinance
violation surcharge, subscriptions

E-business strategy

Police Private Duty Services

Charges for services

Police private duty services to
the public

Police Home Ownership Program

Revolving loans

Assist police officers with
closing and down payment
costs with the intent of
encouraging them to reside in
the Southeast quadrant of
West Hartford

Cemetery Operating Donations and charges for services | Care and maintenance of
Town-owned and/or operated
cemeteries

C.F. Morway Trust revenue Purchase of park and

recreation equipment and
facilities

The Town That Cares

Donations

Financial assistance to needy

School Donations Trust

Contributions and charges for
services

Public school purchases

Affordable Housing Trust

Loan repayments

Assistance to low and
moderate income families

Veterans Memorial

Donations and state grant

Community memorial to honor
veterans

Student Activity

Charges for services

Student activities of the West
Hartford school system
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
PERMANENT FUNDS

Permanent funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that only
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting government’s programs.
The Private Cemetery Fund is the Town’s only permanent fund. Contributions and trust income is used

for the maintenance of private cemetery lots.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human and Cultural:
Human Services:
Personal Services
Nonpersonal Expense
Debt and Sundry
Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers In
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Uses
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

EXHIBIT B-3

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 2,901 $ 1,055 $ (1,846)
223 266 (43)
885 177 708
155 153 2
1,263 596 667
1,638 459 (1,179)
- 166 166
(1,638) (625) 1,013
(1,638) (459) 1,179
$ - - 8 -
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

CDBG HOUSING REHABILITATION FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human and Cultural:
Nonpersonal Expense

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

EXHIBIT B-4

Variance -
Positive

Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 200 $ 265 $ 65
200 265 65
200 99 101
- 166 166

- (166) (166)

$ - - 8 -
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

STATE HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT FUND

EXHIBIT B-5

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUES
Interest
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Human and Cultural:
Nonpersonal

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Budget

Actual

Variance -
Positive
(Negative)
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
PARKING LOT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community Maintenance:
Personal Services
Nonpersonal Expense
Capital Outlay
Debt and Sundry

Total Expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT B-6

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 954 $ 2,170 $ 1,216
44 80 36
3 - (3)
1,001 2,250 1,249
871 763 108
1,092 1,083 9
10 - 10
825 816 9
2,798 2,662 136
$ (1,797) (412) $ 1,385
542
$ 130

(128)




TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

WESTMOOR PARK FUND

EXHIBIT B-7

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Interest
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Human and Cultural:
Personal Services
Nonpersonal Expense
Debt and Sundry

Total Expenditures

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Uses
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 371 330 $ (41)
380 455 75
21 50 29
772 835 63
403 384 19
119 122 (3)
208 200 8
730 706 24
42 129 87
(59) (81) (22)
(59) (81) (22)
$ (17) 48 $ 65
343
391
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EXHIBIT B-8
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
PRIVATE SCHOOL SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
(IN THOUSANDS)

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
REVENUES
Intergovernmental $ 619 $ 738 $ 119
EXPENDITURES
Current:

Education 2,491 2,183 308
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES (1,872) (1,445) 427
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

Transfers In 1,873 1,445 (428)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $ 1 - $ (1)

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year -

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ -
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

WEST HARTFORD LIBRARY FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Human and Cultural:
Nonpersonal Expense
Total Expenditures

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT B-9

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ - $ 31 31
39 8 31
39 39 -
132 37 95
132 37 95
$ (93) 2 95
93
$ 95
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EXHIBIT B-10

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
TECHNOLOGY INVESTMENT FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

REVENUES
Charges for Services

EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government:
Nonpersonal Expense

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

(IN THOUSANDS)

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 10 $ 11 $ 1
10 10 -
$ - 1 $ 1
8
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

POLICE PRIVATE DUTY SERVICES FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

REVENUES
Charges for Services

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Public Safety:
Personal Services
Nonpersonal Expense
Capital Outlay
Debt and Sundry
Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE
Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT B-11

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 1,900 $ 2,119 219
1,300 1,404 (104)
18 24 (6)
117 (117)
433 453 (20)
1,751 1,998 (247)
149 121 (28)
(125) (125) -
$ 24 (4) (28)
298
$ 294
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EXHIBIT B-12

TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT

CEMETERY OPERATING FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(NONGAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)

REVENUES
Charges for Services
Income on Investments
Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Human and Cultural:
Personal Services
Nonpersonal Expense
Debt and Sundry

Total Expenditures

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING USES
Transfers Out
Total Other Financing Uses
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

(IN THOUSANDS)

Variance -
Positive
Budget Actual (Negative)
$ 569 $ 416 $ (153)
4 4 -
573 420 (153)
140 202 (62)
189 153 36
179 179 -
508 534 (26)
65 (114) (179)
- 3) 3)
- (3) 3)
$ 65 (117) $ (182)
354
237
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

The Internal Service Funds are used for the financing of goods or services provided by one department
or agency to other departments or agencies of the Town, or to other governments, on a cost-

reimbursement basis. The Risk Management Fund and the Utilities Services Fund are the Town’s only
Internal Service Funds.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current;
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments
Receivables, Net
Prepaid Items
Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Current:
Accounts and Other Payables
Payroll Liabilities
Risk Management Claims
Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent:
Risk Management Claims
Total Liabilities

NET POSITION
Unrestricted

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT C-1

Risk Utilities
Management Services
Fund Fund Total
$ 3,627 $ 1,636 5,263
24,523 - 24,523
17 - 17
3 - 3
28,170 1,636 29,806
353 182 535
13 3 16
704 - 704
1,070 185 1,255
9,264 - 9,264
10,334 185 10,519
$ 17,836 $ 1,451 19,287
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EXHIBIT C-2
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Risk Utilities
Management Services
Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES

Fund Premiums $ 33,369 $ 4,430 $ 37,799

Employee Contributions 8,655 - 8,655

Other 82 - 82

Total Operating Revenues 42,106 4,430 46,536

OPERATING EXPENSES

Administrative Expense 272 107 379

Employee Benefits 38,375 - 38,375

Insurance and Program Services 4,556 - 4,556

Utility Services - 4,660 4,660

Total Operating Expenses 43,203 4,767 47,970

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (1,097) (337) (1,434)
NONOPERATING REVENUE

Income on Investments (3,172) - (3,172)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (4,269) (337) (4,606)
TRANSFERS

Transfers Out (55) - (55)
CHANGE IN NET POSITION (4,324) (337) (4,661)
Net Position - Beginning of Year 22,160 1,788 23,948
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 17,836 $ 1,451 $ 19,287
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT C-3

Risk Utilities
Management Services
Fund Fund Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Employees $ 8,655 $ - $ 8,655
Cash Received from Operating Funds 33,369 4,430 37,799
Cash Payments to Providers Benefits (37,718) - (37,718)
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (4,903) (4,682) (9,585)
Other Operating Receipts 80 - 80
Payments for Interfund Services Used - (166) (166)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (517) (418) (935)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers to Other Funds (55) - (55)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Income on Investments 62 - 62
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (510) (418) (928)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 4,137 2,054 6,191
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR $ 3,627 $ 1,636 $ 5,263
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss) $ (1,097) % (337) % (1,434)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:
Change in Assets and Liabilities:
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable 17) - 17)
(Increase) Decrease in Prepaid Items (2) - (2)
Increase (Decrease) in Accounts and Other Payables (38) 85 47
Increase (Decrease) in Payroll Liabilities (37) - (37)
Increase (Decrease) in Due to Other Funds - (166) (166)
Increase (Decrease) in Risk Management
Claim Liability 674 - 674
Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities $ (517) $ (418) $ (935)
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

The Fiduciary Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in an agency capacity on behalf
of others. The agency funds of the Town are as follows:

TRUST FUNDS:

Pension Trust Fund — This fund is used for the accumulation of resources and to be used for
retirement payments to members of the Towns as defined in the Charter of the Town upon their
retirement.

Other Postemployment (OPEB) Trust Fund — This fund is used for the accumulation of resources
and to be used for payments of healthcare benefits for retired employees.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments:

Mutual Funds

Common Stock

Alternative Investments
Receivables:

Accounts and Other Receivables

Interest and Dividends

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and Other Payables

NET POSITION
Restricted for Pension Benefits
Restricted for OPEB Benefits

Total Net Position

EXHIBIT D-1

Pension OPEB
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
$ 2,136 $ 8,629 10,765
400,369 5,960 406,329
36,973 - 36,973
49,344 - 49,344
- 28 28
350 - 350
489,172 14,617 503,789
46 - 46
489,126 - 489,126
- 14,617 14,617
$ 489,126 $ 14,617 503,743
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

EXHIBIT D-2

Pension OPEB
Trust Fund Trust Fund Total
ADDITIONS
Contributions:
Employer $ 322,900 $ 17,178 340,078
Plan Members 3,503 112 3,615
Total Contributions 326,403 17,290 343,693
Investment Income:
Net Change in Fair Value of Investments (74,205) (1,221) (75,426)
Interest 52 16 68
Dividends 7,399 105 7,504
Total Investment Income (66,754) (1,100) (67,854)
Less: Investment Expense (585) - (585)
Net Investment Income (67,339) (1,100) (68,439)
Total Additions 259,064 16,190 275,254
DEDUCTIONS
Benefits 39,287 15,060 54,347
Administration 364 - 364
Total Deductions 39,651 15,060 54,711
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 219,413 1,130 220,543
Net Position - Beginning of Year 269,713 13,487 283,200
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 489,126 $ 14,617 503,743
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STATISTICAL SECTION
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STATISTICAL SECTION INFORMATION

The objectives of statistical section information are to provide financial statement users with additional
historical perspective, context, and detail to assist in using the information in the financial statements,
notes to financial statements and required supplementary information to understand and assess
economic condition.

Statistical section information is presented in the following categories:

Financial trends information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing how
financial position has changed over time.

Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing the
factors affecting the ability to generate own-source revenues (property taxes, charges for
services, etc.).

Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and assessing debt
burden and the ability to issue additional debt.

Demographic and economic information is intended 1) to assist users in understanding the
socioeconomic environment and 2) to provide information that facilitates comparisons of
financial statement information over time and among governments.

Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about operations and
resources to assist readers in using financial statement information to understand and assess
economic condition.

The accompanying tables are presented in the above order. Refer to the Table of Contents for
applicable page number locations.

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in the tables is derived from the comprehensive

annual financial reports for the relevant year.
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TABLE 9
TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
STATEMENT OF DEBT LIMITATION

JUNE 30, 2022
(IN THOUSANDS)

Total Tax Collections (Including Interest and Lien Fees)

Received by Treasurer for Year Ended June 30, 2021 $ 267,918 *
Reimbursement for Revenue Loss On:
Tax Relief for Elderly 5
Base $ 267,923
General Urban Pension
Purpose Schools Sewers Renewal Deficit
Debt Limitation:
2.25 Times Base $ 602,827 $ - $ - $ - $ -
4,50 Times Base - 1,205,654 - - -
3.75 Times Base - - 1,004,711 - -
3.25 Times Base - - - 870,750 -
3.00 Times Base - - - - 803,769
Total Debt Limitation 602,827 1,205,654 1,004,711 870,750 803,769
Indebtedness:
Bonds Payable 91,607 40,703 - - 324,275
Note Payable 197
Lease Payable 2,232
Bonds Authorized - Unissued 38,401 34,297 - - -
Overlapping Debt - - 178,482 - -
School Building Grants - - - - -
Total Indebtedness 132,437 75,000 178,482 - 324,275
Debt Margin $ 470,390 $ 1,130,654 $ 826,229 $ 870,750 $ 479,494

* Source: Tax Collector's Report
Note 1: In no event shall total indebtedness exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation ($1.88 billion)

Note 2: Bonds authorized-unissued represents bond authorizations for projects which have bond anticipation
notes outstanding or for which bonds have been authorized and partially issued.
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TOWN OF WEST HARTFORD, CONNECTICUT
DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

TABLE 11

Total Personal  Per Capita Average

Fiscal Income” Personal Median School Unemployment
Year Population’ (in thousands) Income’ Age' Enroliment Rate®
2013 63,268 $ 2,783,665 $ 43,998 41.5 9,885 6.8 %
2014 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,817 6.8
2015 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,657 6.0
2016 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,531 4.4
2017 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,483 4.0
2018 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,435 3.5
2019 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,400 3.3
2020 63,268 2,783,665 43,998 41.5 9,334 3.1
2021 64,083 3,498,996 54,601 411 9,157 5.5
2022 64,083 3,725,786 58,140 40.9 9,210 3.6

' U.S. Census Bureau

2Town of West Hartford Board of Education.
3 State of Connecticut Labor Department, Office of Research

(159)



(091)

"Hoday [elouBUl{ [enuuy aAISUBYaIdWLOD pIojeH 1S8AA JO UMO] €107 Jesh |eosid - ejep €102
"0U| J8JUB) S82IN0S8Y 2IWOUODT JNDII08UUOD pUE JogeT Jo Juswedaq IN0II0sUU0) - Blep ZZ0Z :991N0S

9'Lc 066°8-00S 't 8'cc L¥.6-00€'S [eloL
'l (0]% 661-0G¢ Bunnoenuey Buunioeinuely 110D
'l 6 661-05¢ awoH BuisinN awoH s,Ae 1S
Al A 66%-052 92IAISS douBINqUIY asuodsay [edIpa|y uedawy
A 9 661-05¢ uoleonpg 1N21I08UUOY JO A)ISIBAIUN
'l S 661-05¢ Bulnjoenuey ‘d1oD youpoo9)/swalsAg aoedsolay-0 1N
v'e € 666-00S BuLinyoejnuepy *OU| ‘S}oNpold PlOWaIIA
G0 ol 6¥¢-001 [IE}9Y-S190049 }oxlewsadng doys g doig
S0 6 6v¢-00L SBWOH jusdssleAuo) gqeysy @ yiesH plojueH 1sep
[ 8 661-05¢ $90IAISS Uoelljiqeysy ou| SAOYSHIOAN BAONASUOD
A 8 66¥-05¢ L'L L 661-0S¢ jueine)say 8dIAI8G-|Ind Aiojoe exeosssay)
Ll 9 667-052 s|ejldsoH [ewiuy 11D Aleulsia 1no1308UU0YD
[ S 661-052 sJainjoejnuep-sjusuodwo) Yeloy Swia)sAg |04juo) suibug ydwnu}
v'e ¥ 666-005 €c 14 666-009 |eydsoH ale) yjlesH maigaH je [eyidsoH
€c € 666-00S 80IAI8S YjesH sWwoH SWOH 1V 8JedyjjesH piojieH
8V l 666°L-000°} 29 [4 0622001} juswulsnog pJojlleH JSSAN JO UMO |
% 8% 4 666°L-000°} % 9L 2 666'C-000°C uonednp3 pJogeH jo Aysieaun

wawAoldw3 yuey saaAoldw3] juswAojdwz yuey saaAoldw] ssauisng JaAoldwg
umo] [ejo] jo umo] |ejo] jo Jo ainjleN
abejuaolad abejuaoiad
€10¢ A4\

Zl J3navl

OOV SUVIA ININ ANV dVIA LNIJHAND
SY3IAOTdINT TVdIONIAd
LNJILOANNOD ‘QHO4L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL



(191)

uoiedNp3 Jo pJeog pue SadIAISS |eloueuld Jo Juswpedsq :99inog

8'/10°C L'€€0°C G'G20C 2'€00°C €986'L 0'900°C ¥'9.6°L 8'0S6'L 2286l v'/€6'L [eloL
€/65°L 27/85°L G'6.G°L 2'655°L €Sl 0°19G°L ' veS L 801G} 4151 7’9611 uofjeanpy - [ejoL
8°'00¢ 9'c6e L'162 9'68¢ 8'08¢ 1°18¢ €8¢ €'68¢ 2'98¢ €'€8¢ 3ejs [euononijsuiuoN
§'962'1L L'v62'L ¥'88¢2°L 9'¢lT’L G'09Z'L 6'¢LC'L L'0S¢‘L §'Gee'lL 0'gee’tL L'eLe’L HEIS |euononlsu|
:uoneanp3
G'0Sy 09y 09y 0'vvy 0°'Svy 0°'Svy (X444 0'0vy (344 0'Lvy umo] - [ejol
- 06 06 06 06 06 06 06 06 06 S3SINN |00YdS djeAld
06 - - - - - - - - - S92IAI9S UBWNH
0've 0've 0've 0've 0've 0've 0've 0've 0've 0've Aresq
09¢ 0'9¢ 09¢ 0°Sc 0°'se 0S¢ 0'Ge 0'se 0S¢ 0°S¢c S9DIAISS BINs|9T pue uewny
;|ednyn) pue uewnH
G'6 G'6 G'6 G'8 S8 €8 €8 €8 06 06 S80IMBG saljjioed pue jueld
009 009 009 009 009 009 0'8S 085 0'8S 089 S}IOM dlignd
0've 0've 0ve 0S¢ 0'9¢ (AT [A°14 cve S've Sve sedIMeg Ajunwwo)
:90ueUSBUIRIN AHlUNWWOD
0l 0l 0l 0l 0L 0L 0l o'l 0l 0L wajsAg suonesluNWWoD
0SSl 0'vsL 0'¥SL 0'est 0'esl 0'esl 0'est 0¢sl 0¢st 0cst ddljod
0°¢c6 0°c6 0°c6 0°c6 0°'c6 0¢6 0°¢c6 0°¢6 0¢6 0¢c6 all4
:Ayejes olland
g8 S8 G'8 6 G'6 G'6 S'6 G'6 S'6 G'6 seoIAIeg 99kojdws
0LL 0/1 0L 0/1 0L 0L 0Ll 01 0L 0Ll S9VIAIBS |eloueUl
Sy 0y (V84 (N4 oy (V4 0y oy (4 (U84 ABojouyds | uonew.opu|
0L 0’2 02 02 0L 02 0L 0L 02 0L Jossassy
- - - - - - - - - - SI9]OA JO Jessibay
0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢ 0€ o€ 0'¢ 0¢ 0¢e [asunod uonelodiod
0'S 0€ 0€ 0€ 0¢ 0¢ 0¢C 0¢ 0¢C 0¢c JaBeuely umo]
(084 (084 (084 (084 (a7 0y o'y oy o'y 0y |PUNOD UMO M49]Q UMO ]
JUBWIUIBAOS) [BIBUSD
[44\4 344 020¢ 6102 810¢C 1102 910¢ G102 10C €L0C juswyiedag/uonound
Jea A [eoslH

€L 31avl

NOILONN4 A9 S33AO0TdINT FNIL-TTNS
LNJILOIANNOD ‘QHO4L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL

SYUVIA TVIOSId N3L LSV



(z91)

£€8'8 9¢€'6 062 62'8 LcolL 06 yXAVA ov's paAeday 19941S Jo S3|IA
1, $80IAI8G AUNWWOD
‘90uUBUBJUIR\ AJUNLIWOYD
0,96 282'6 GE00L €596 11Y'6 L0¥'8 168'€ 6.8V S|ied [ejoL
9€6°'C vel'e 6l2'C 689°C 19€C viz'e v18°'l 110 80IAI8S 10} s||eD JaylQ JO JequinN
88l 869 ces ocy oSt 29l /1SL 08¢ S|[eD [elSleN snoplezeH JO JSqUNN
18€9 ¥82'9 LoL‘.L 09¢'9 18.°9 028's [47N" 108} ZSIleD 8Nndsay/[edIps|y Adusblaw3 Jo JsquinN
SolL 9.1 €8l 781 6.1 S0¢ 8L Lee S|[eD paje|ay all4 JO JaqUINN
HEYE
:Ayogeg ollgnd
% C¢ % - % - % - % ¢€ % - % - % - uoldd|g [EJ07 - JUBIIS JnOUIN| JBJOA
% - % - % S€ % S. % - % - % L9 % 69 uohos|3 8lels - Juddlsd jnouin| J8JOA
% - % L8 % ¢¢ % - % - % 8L % - % - uoljod|3 |eUONEN - JUSJISd JnouIn] JBJOA
€9/'cy 1681 1020 8960 GG8'8e 8vz'ey L15'6¢€ ¥¥0'8¢€ SI8JOA passisibay jo JequinN
 SIBJON JO JeysIbey
zLoel 16601 1968 Gee's 1688 1€0'6 9688 199°€l passa001d sploday pueT
1M1 umo |
1JUBWIUIBAOS) |BISUSD)
120z 0202 6102 810 7102 9102 7102 9002 1Usluedaq/uonound

vl 318avl

SYVIA TVIOSId JAId LSV

NOILONNd A8 SHOLVIIANI ONILVYIdO
LNJILOANNOD ‘QHO41L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL

‘L€ Jeaquisda papul Jes A 8y} Jo4



(g91)

"SISEq JeaA JEpUS|ED B UO PaUIBUIEW Bjep SOUBWIOMSd,

% ¥ % ¥ % b % L % b % 6 % L % 9¢ paues|D suiseg Yojed Jo Jusiad
% 00} % 00} % 001 % 001 % 001 % 68 % 68 % 00} SINOH g UIYIM POIEa|D SWIOISMOUS JO JUS0ISd
b b S zi 2L L 8l 6 suopesadO MOUS 4O JaquinN
Zvo 9’0 920 8¢'0 ¥€0 €0 €0 920 (suoL) ployasno 1ad pajokosy junowy
% §'Ze % G'Ee % €92 % 812 % 082 % 992 % 892 %012 pajohoay B1SEM [B10L JO JUS0Iad
zve's 1216 6vE'9 zv0'L 692'. €589 Zv6'9 06€'9 pajokoay SseA JO suoL
9L'6YL 0L oYL Tl iyl $ 8SvLL Syl 00191 1G€S1 18VEL PIOYESNOH Jed 1500 J0J0BAUOD osnjey
cee'gl 8ee'6l z0L'81 ovz'sl vL9'8l vz8'8l 8e6'8l €20'v2 pa10s||0D asnjey Jo suo
Yral Ll vee'L 8IG'L eyl 1G9'L 659'L 61219 ,Po108|0D SeARST JO U0
188'1 509 088'y 209 05L'G 909'9 1£9'9 LV6' LY ,(SPIEA 91GND) PaJ08||0) SEAEST JO BWINIOA
'S}HOM 9lland
878'0vZ'VEL $  2¢S1'822'88 $  98E'YSZ'06 $  6LV'8E8'L6 §  161'C/2'88 $  ¥/S'62LTL $  ¥GL'GEE'LGL §  000°000°18) $ (SHwiad Buipling [B101 JO anfeA Jejiog
898'9 1619 665'G 8G6'G 12g'9 500'9 195'G 002 (SHwiad Bup|Ng [B10 JO JequinN
629'L1 018'6 0£5'6 888'01 90411 08z'0L vLv'0L 197’8 PaIoNpUOY suoloadsul JO JoquinN

:$90IM9S Ajunwwo)
:@0UBUBJUIBI AJUNWIWOD

¥8 8 11 08 11 €6 661 e/u sisally |NQ 0 JoquinN
06%'C 06%'C 0£0'G L06'Y 812's 9£0'G €0Z'9 e/u S}S8.IY BJOIYSA JOJON JO JOqUINN
GeL'L GelL'L €0€'L G6L°L zzLL 1€2'L 188°L e/ SisallY [eUIWHD JO JOquINN
6G8'GY 658'GY ovv'ev 8ll'cy 82C'Sy v.€'Gy 888'99 e/ 90IAI9G 10} S|[ED [E}OL
95l'c 95l 9L¥'s GE6'S 189'G 6569 €e5'g e/ sdo}S B[oIydA J0JON JO JBquINN
1€0°C 1£0'2 VA A4 vve'e ¥92'c 86v'C zev'e e/ SJUBPIOY B|DIYBA J0JON
69%'/2 69%'12 GL2'82 vel'se 50.°0€ 4% prd Gzo'ee e/u s||eD [edIpa|\ pue doIAIeS
SvL'0l S¥1°0L zve'el 66£'6 oLz'ol 1160} L09°LL e/u SUOJJE|OIA SOUBUIPIO UMO] JO SBWHD pauoday
:92l|10d
:Ayoses ollgnd
z20e 1202 020C 6102 8102 1102 5102 1002 juswyedag/uonoung

‘0€ sunf papusg Jes A [eosl4 8y 104

SYVIA TVIOSId JAId LSV
(@3NNILNOD) NOILONNA A9 SHOLVIIANI ONILYYIdO

LNIJILO3INNOID ‘Q¥O041¥VH 1S3IM 40 NMOL
(@3anNILNOD)
y1L 3719vL



(¥91)

awil} Iy} Je e|gejieAeun ejeq -
1eaA 100Y0s 0Z-610Z @Y1 Bulnp pe1onpuod jou eiem Bunse) | S Alojepuew pue Buise) ajels ‘olwepued 6L-AIAQD 8yl 0} 8np - e/u
61-AIAOD 01 anp suonelado 0} sebueyd sjoa|a. Blep 0Z A4 Sjusweds( [einjnd pue uewny

ove'LL L0y 191°z¢ 09g°9% 82g' LY 8eY'eS 989'8S - suolssag Jejndwog Jo JaquinN
080'GY z6h'eT 06€89 6510 0Z8'v6 ove'001 v12'6. - abesn (141M) ssaleim
68Z'GYY 180°/2Y S0L'vLY 12.'88¢ 89€ vy 818'60¢ 262'0.€ e/ S|eABlLIaY UOKBWIOMU| 1U0JJ08[]
19599 82£'2S SZv'v9 68118 206'v. 9/9'// 88G'08 e/ sauInbu| sousisley
00l 0. zolL 62l ¥'oL 80l el . ejide) Jed sueo
619'/¢€1 9l9'L€l GG6'EEl 608°/8 8€2'65 geh'6Y lzZv'se . SUBOT BIPSI\| PUE Y004 21U0J}08|T JO JeqWINN
099005 GG9'70€ €29'L1S z68'6e. €9/°16G 189°G€9 161861 - SUEOT BIPSJ\ pue 300g julld JO JOqUINN
181662 620022 ¥26'2€2 Y602 LSL'vLe ¥G0'G61 - - SMBIA JOHBISMEN
gog'cl 096°Z) LEQ'LL oL LL 9680} 05901 - - $19qLIOSGNS/SIOMO||04 BIPSIA [E100S JO JoquInN
226'0C £8€°'9z 8€6'6T 9zv'oe 800°/2 886°/C ¥£6'62 - SJI8p|OH pied
8.G°L 829 Lzv'e 8e8'e ale'e 809'¢ soL'e - sessed wnasn|y pue swelboid
960'/52 6.£'622 266'€82 L¥9'80€ 682'GLe zi8'1ee 619'16¢ e/ SI0)ISIA Blsga Aleiqi]
¥60'C 08¢'82 - - - - - - sjuswiuloddy dnxold 8pisqingy
¥G1'G81L ¥Z1L'9s 6L¥'662 oL 8y 08g°.¢Y ¥80°19% 9/9'0LY . sioysiA Areaqry
:Aeiqi
6vL'g z8L's 20L'8 ZL9'01 00g‘L} 98L'LL 250°C) 9/8'7L sdu | 8pry-y-eld 40 JequnN
¥00'G 659y 109'9 1106 200'6 1616 065'6 GlZ'6 SDIAISS JSBJUNIOA JO SINOH
:S9JIAIBS |el100sS

LLO'YL z0z'sl £80°0L 18¢'g #8801 698°LL 76091 yeE'SL 8sIn0) J|o9 eisiA eusng
le ﬁ.®>m_n_ SpPUNOyY J|09H JO JaquinN

980'6¢ vg' Ly 18€'7E 100°2¢ 18€°1¢€ zzy'ee 90L'ey STAN14 851n09 J|09 8bBpso0Y je
_o®>m_n_ SpUNOyY J|09H JO JaquinN

9/1'.2 G9G6°0L 00S'¥Z 8/6'C¢ 16522 1G8'61 196'€Z 1Gl'ee yury Buneys [euowsy
SUBISJBA Je 8duepuapy uolssag Jljlgnd
9/8'L 602 2.6°L 116°C 9e8'z ¥8L'y 298'y 896°¢C |00d J00pU| - SUONEl}sIBay UOSSaT WIMS JO JoquinN
9/1'1 - - 122 zie'L 6.G'L Ll €T6'L $|00d J00PINQ - SUOKESIBEY UOSSST WIMS JO JSqUINN
¥9Z'L 266 gL'l 989°L G8.°L Lv6°L 6G6'L 99/'C SIBQUIBIA J8)UBY I0IUSS JO JBquInN
L16'GZ 9v.'9 sle'/z 102'9¢ rLE've 19062 965'82 90g°LZ suolesisibey weiboid [euoonlsul Jo JoquinN
evL'e (W] 008'c €99 108'¢ £08'C 968'C 100'¢ pajonpuo) swelbold [euoionuisul Jo J8quinN

'S90IAISS 8Ins|aT
;,Jednyny pue uewny

2¢coc L¢0e 0coc 610¢C 810¢ 1102 gl0c 100 juswyedag/uonouny
‘0g BuUN( papul Jea A [Bosi4 8y} 104

SYVIA TVIOSId JAId LSV
(@3NNILNOD) NOILONNL A9 SHOLVIIANI ONILYYIdO

LNIJILO3INNOID ‘A¥O041¥VH 1S3IM 40 NMOL
(@3anNILNOD)
y1L 3719vL



(g91)

J1eaA 100Yos 0z-610Z @Y Buunp paonpuod jou aiem Bupss) | S Alojepuew pue Buise) ajels ‘olwspued gL-aIAOD 8} 0} enp - e/u

8ZIS SSB|0 ,S|00Y0S 8)0Wal S8PN|OUl 8ZIS SSB0 8BBIBAY 0Z0T xx

% - % - % ¥'0 % €0 % G0 % ¥'0 % 90 % L) 8jey Jnodolq [enuuy
% - % - % 6°16 % C'¥6 % €6 % 6°€6 % L6 % 1°€6 siea A  ulyppn Bunenpels) syuspnis Jo 9%
%65/%.9 % 9GS / % S99 e/ % 29/ % 0L % L9/ % 0L % 19/% L. % G'9 % G’/ abelany Qygs |1eJon0
%GS/%69 % ¢S/ % 19 e/u % 19/ % €1 % L9/ % €L % LS/ % L. % €69 % 092 YIBA/VT3 - 8 8pelD
% 1G/%S9 % 25/ % L9 e/ %95 /% L. % 95/ % 19 % 19/ % 0L % 889 % 9V, YeN/VT3 - L 8pelD
%£S/%29 % vV | % 69 e/ % LS/ % 89 % S | % 99 % 09/ % 69 % G°€9 % 192 YIBA/VT3 - 9 8pelD
%85/%.9 % S | % 99 e/u % 99/ % ¢. % €9/ % S % 9SG/ % ¢. % 679 % G'L. Ule\/vV13 - G 8peto
%S59/%0. % L9/ % 99 e/ % L9/ % 69 % 99/ % 01 % L9/ % €L % €69 % 0°¢L YIBA/VT3 - ¥ 8pelD
%69/%69 % v9 / % 89 e/u % 29/ % 89 % 29/ % 69 % 29/ % L. % ¥°89 % G°0. Yle\/V13 - € 8peto
umm‘_m._. mc_wwm_\/_ Jusdlad - sal0dg JvdS
G¥G/09S 1¥G/999 e/ 9GG6/999 695/0.S 1GG/€1S e/u e/u UleN/M¥3 - s8100S 1VS
e/ e/ e/u e/ e/ e/ 926/92S/€€S 0vS/0vS/L S Bunua/ieqiaA/yIeN - $8100S 1VS
8°0¢ €6l 9l 8l ¥'le 1 (A v'6l j00yos ybiH
102 66l g6l €6l 86l 86l 86l €6l 100Y0S SIPpIN
1’8l '8l 861 86l coc 0°'0¢C 1’6l 9'0C |jooyos Atejusws|g
xx9ZIS Sse|D wmm._®><
-:uoneonp3y
¢coc 1202 0c0¢ 610C 8L0¢ 1102 glLoc 100¢ juswpedaq/uonoung
.om aunp papuz Jes A |edsi{ ayj 104
SYUVIA TVISId IAId LSV
(@3INNILNOD) NOILONNA A9 SHOLVYIIANI ONILYYIdO
LNJILO3INNOID ‘Q¥O041¥VH 1S3IM 40 NMOL
(@3anNILNOD)

vl 318avl



(991)

z z 4 z z z z 4 14 z sjooyos ybiH
€ € € € € € € € € € s|00y2S BIpPPIA
L L [ L L L L L L L sjooyog Asejuawa|g
.:uoneonp3
€ € € € € € € € € € sayouelg Aeiqr
6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 SHNOD |[eqieyseqd
z6 z6 z6 26 z6 z6 z6 66 66 66 SJEIEEIEIN
zL/8e 9/0t 9/0% A4 zy Zy Zy v 4 €S SUNOY ||egepiold/SHNOY siuus |
62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 62 spunoJbhe|d
Z8L'L z8L'L z8L'L z8LL z8L'L z8L'L z8L'L z8L'L z8LL Z8L°1 pueT Yied jo saioy
L / . . . i L / . . Syied
G S g G G S g g G S seljioe4 oenby
L L L L L L L L L L yury Buneys 99
4 4 4 z Zz Zz Zz z z z $88IN0Y §|09
€ € € € € € € € € € selsloWa)
L L L 1 L l L L L I sisjus) Ajunwwio
z 4 z z Zz z 4 z z 4 sIsjua Joluss
Jleanjind pue uewnH
z Zz 4 4 Zz 4 z 4 4 4 sebeles) Bupyed
- Ges Ges Ges 6./ GG/ 716l r1GL P11 z6¢°1 sooedg Bunjied psjeo
€68 £6¢ £6¢ £6¢ £6¢ €6¢ €6¢ £6¢ £6¢ 1€€ seoedg Buiyied peses
89v'C €e6°L €€6°lL €€6'l 689'L €19l £€5 €5 €5 867 saoedg Bupied patsjep
059/ 0v9'2 0v9°2 0v9'L ov9'/L 0v9'Z 0v9'2 0v9'2 0v9'L 0299 suiseg yojeD Jo JaquinN
0/l 0L 0L 0L 0L 01 0L 0L 0L 0L SISMBS WI0IS 4O S|l
00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ 00¢ S¥e N[EMBPIS 4O SB|IIN
622 122 €22 zze zze zee Lze 0zz 02z 02z qnQ o selIN
Ll n Ll Ll Ll Ll Ll Ll Ll Gl AemybiH ayess Jo sei
9l 9l Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Gl Ll S}9a.1S 8)eAld 4O SolIN
yA%4 11z 112 yA%4 YAk yA%4 %4 112 11z %4 S}98llS UMO] 4O SO
:90ueUSUIRI\ AHlUNWWO)
ol ol 6 8 8 . . / A y) snjeseddy aJi4
S S g G G S G S G S suone]s a4
yy) 9/ 08 8/ 9/ 9/ 0. 19 19 19 sJe) 8ol0d
:Aejes olgnd
zz0e 1202 020Z 6102 8102 /102 9102 GL0Z ¥102 €102 uonoung
lea\ |eoslH

Sl 3navil

SYUVIA TVvIOSId N3L 1SV
NOILONN4 A9 SOILSILVLS 13SSV TV1IdVI
LNJILOIANNOD ‘QHO41L¥VH LSIM 40 NMOL



